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Chairman Statement
FERE

During the financial year, the Group suffered from a loss
of about HK$104 milion, which was comparable to
corresponding figure in prior period. Turnover of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 decreased
from HK$849 million to HK$676 million.

The business environment for export-manufacturing is
critical despite of the recovery in global economy. The
adverse factors mainly included labour shortage in Pearl
River Delta and the sharp rise in material prices, such as
plastics, paper and copper.

Moreover, certain orders of customers could not be well
fulfilled, mainly because of the lack of appropriate bank
finance.

In view of the above, we carried out reviews on the
Group’s operation and marketing strategy. It came to our
conclusion that certain products which were either at
their decline stage or had been loss-making consistently
would be eliminated gradually in order to refresh our
product mix for healthier growth in future.

Going forward, we will strive to increase cash flows by
controlling operating costs through various measures,
including further elimination of loss-making products and
close-down of product lines which are incurring excessive
overheads.

We also endeavor to improve our current product market
mix through product development and market
penetration. We will introduce new products through
product innovation, as well as improve quality of current
products to achieve higher margin. On the other hand,
emphasis will be put on marketing current profitable
products to encourage need from existing customers.

We will keep on exploring new business opportunities to
create value for our shareholders. Particularly, we have
set up a new business line in oil trading subsequent to
the financial year, which is expected to take over the
EMS division as a major revenue stream of the Group in
near future.

The Group will also consider suitable means to enhance
its existing capital base as the balance sheet recorded a
net liability as at the end of reporting period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group Financial Review
AEBZEBEN WD MM K EE

Turnover

The Group’s turnover decreased to approximately
HK$675.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2011, a
reduction of approximately 20.5% as compared to the
preceding financial period. The decline was mainly
attributable to the tightened credit environment and weak
demand of the consumer electronic products in the
overseas markets.

Gross Loss

The gross loss was about HK$6.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2011 whereas the gross loss was about
HK$6.3 million in prior year. It was mainly attributable to
high level of overheads resulting from smaller production
scale and provision for royalties.

Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended
31 March 2011 totalled to approximately HK$86 million,
representing an increase of 21.4% as compared to the
corresponding figures last period. The Group’s selling
and distribution expenses amounted to approximately
HK$8 million, representing a decrease of approximately
41.1% as compared to the preceding financial period. No
finance costs were incurred during the financial period as
compared to about HK$19.7 million in the preceding
financial period.

Working Capital Management

As at 31 March 2011, the Group maintained bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$9 million (31
March 2010: approximately HK$19 million). The division’s
average inventory turnover days was approximately 28
days (31 March 2010: approximately 48 days).

Financing and Capital Structure
As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s total debts stood at
approximately HK$2,874,000 (31 March 2010:
approximately HK$67,000).

Capital Expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment

Total capital expenditure for the year was approximately
HK$3.6 million (31 March 2010: HK$7.4 million), mainly
spent on moulds investment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis of the Group Financial Review
rEBEEBETRE MU KL E

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The net liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2011 were
HK$132.5 million (31 March 2010: HK$28.3 million). The
current ratio was approximately 0.3 (31 March 2010:
approximately 0.8). Shareholders’ deficits were
approximately HK$132.5 million (31 March 2010: HK$28.3
million) because of the significant loss of HK$104.2
million for the year. In view of the net liability and net
current liability positions, the Group will consider suitable
means to enhance its capital base.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 March 2011, bank deposits amounting HK$0.7
million (31 March 2010: HK$Nil) were pledged.

Capital Commitments
As at 31 March 2011, the Group had no material capital
commitments.

Treasury Policy

The majority of the Group’s sales and purchases are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars or USD. As Hong
Kong Dollars and USD are pegged, the Group had
minimum exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation in this
respect. The contract manufacturing costs incurred in the
PRC were denominated in RMB. The Group still monitors
the overall currency and interest rate exposures.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had approximately 60
employees (31 March 2010: 70). The remuneration
packages are generally structured with reference to
market conditions and the individual qualifications.
Salaries and wages of the Group’s employees are
normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity,
transparency and quality of disclosure in order to
enhance the shareholders’ value.

The Company has applied the principles and complied
with all the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31 March 2011,
save for the deviations discussed below. The Board will
continuously review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company to
ensure that business activities and decision making
processes are regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions (the “Model Code”). Having made specific
enquiry of all directors of the Company, the directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2011.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board is made up of
six Directors, including two executive Directors, and four
independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”). The
Directors are, collective and individually, aware of their
responsibilities to the shareholders. Two of the INEDs
possesses appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise. The
Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section
of “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” on pages
13 to 15.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

The Board members during the year ended 31 March
2011 and as at the date up to this report were:

Executive Director

Mr. Wang Jianging (Chairman)*
Mr. Pan Junfeng*

Mr. Lau Ching Kei*

Mr. Yeung Kwai Tong*

Non-executive Director
Mr. Tam Norman Hok Cheong*

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

Mr. Lo Wai Hung"

appointed on 14 December 2010
resigned on 4 January 2011
appointed on 19 May 2011

The Board conducts at least four regular Board meetings
a year at approximately quarterly intervals in addition to
other Board meetings that are required for significant and
important issues, and for statutory purposes. Appropriate
and sufficient information is provided to the Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the
Group’s latest development and thus assist them in
discharging their duties.
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During the year, the Board has held seven meetings and
the attendance of the directors at the Board Meetings for
the year ended 31 March 2011 is set out as below:

Name of Directors

Corporate Governance Report

TEER®ME

FA EFQCETLREH MREBEE-F
—— A=t HALFEREFLFE=ES
GRZBAWT:

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

EENs HERY EHIE
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Wang Jianging (Chairman)* TFRBEE(ER) 1/7
Mr. Pan Junfeng* EEELAE 0/7
Mr. Lau Ching Keif RIE B A 6/7
Mr. Yeung Kwai Tong* 15 1 AR o A 6/7
Non-executive Director FHITEFE

Mr. Tam Norman Hok Cheong* EEEL L 4/7
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHTESE

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GRAE LT 5/7
Mr. Wong Chi Keung |REAE 5/7
Mr. Tom Xie AR E 4/7
Mr. Lo Wai Hung" EEELEE" 0/7
* appointed on 14 December 2010 * RZE—TF+-A+MHAEEE

# resigned on 4 January 2011 # » ——F—RAMB&MT

" appointed on 19 May 2011 " R-ZE——FHA+NLBEZET

Board minutes are recorded in appropriate detail and
draft minutes are circulated to all directors and
committee members for comments before being
approved by the Board at the next immediate meeting.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are
open for inspection by the directors.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control
of the Group and oversees the Group’s business,
strategic decisions and financial performance. The Board
delegates to the management team the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business including the
preparation of annual and interim reports, and for
implementation of internal control, business strategies
and plans developed by the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERME

The Board members have no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship with each other
except those disclosed in the director biographical
details.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company, notwithstanding that
every Director shall be retired at least once every three
years.

Code Provision A.4.2. of the Code stipulates that all
directors appointed to fill causal vacancy should be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after their appointment. On the other hand,
paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 of the Listing Rules
provides that such directors are to hold office until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
As mentioned in the annual report for FY2006, the Board
decided to leave the existing Bye-laws unchanged given
the inconsistencies as compared with the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company does not at present have any officer
holding the position of Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”).
Mr. Wang Jianging is the chairman of the Company and
has also carried out the responsibilities of CEO. Mr.
Wang possesses the essential leadership skills to
manage the Board and extensive knowledge in the
business of the Group. The Board considers the present
structure to be more suitable to the Company because it
can promote the efficient formulation and implementation
of the Company’s strategies. The Board will review the
effectiveness of this arrangement from time to time and
will consider appointing an individual as CEO when it
thinks appropriate.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established two committees with clearly-
defined written terms of reference. The independent view
and recommendations of the two committees ensure
proper control of the Group and the continual
achievement of the high standard corporate governance
practices.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee (the “RC”) comprises three Independent non-
executive directors, namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr.
Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

The brief duties of the RC as per the terms of reference
were as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of the directors;

2. to have the delegated responsibilities to determine
the specific remunerations package of all executive
directors; and

3. to review and approve compensation payable to
directors’ in connection with loss of their office or
compensation arrangement relating to dismissal or
removal of director.

The RC has every right to access to professional advice
relating to remuneration proposal if considered necessary.
The RC has begun to review the remuneration policy for
the Directors and senior management.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report
LEERGE

The RC meets at least once a year. The RC has held #MEZEE€FFEZLRIT—KEH %Z:zéig
one meeting during the year ended 31 March 2011 and ——&®ZA=+—HILFER HFWHEZES
the attendance of the members is as follows: BIT—RegH KELHRERE /RZZDT :

Number of attendance/
Name of Members Number of Meetings
BREKS REEEXE
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming RGHAE L 1/1
Mr. Wong Chi Keung WAL E 1/1
Mr. Tom Xie AEE L E 1/1
Audit Committee EVZEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee (the
“AC”) comprises three Independent non-executive
directors, namely, Dr. Leung Hoi Ming, Mr. Wong Chi
Keung and Mr. Tom Xie.

The principal duties of the AC include:

1. monitoring integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and reports;

2. reviewing of financial controls, internal controls, and
risk management system; and

3. reviewing of the Company’s financial and

accounting policies and practices.

The AC is authorized by the Board to investigate any
activity and seek any information it requires within its
term of reference. It is also authorized to obtain outside
legal or other independent professional advice and to
secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant
experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

Reporting to the Board of Directors of the Company, the
AC is dedicated to review and supervise the Group’s
financial reporting process and internal controls. The
financial results for the year ended 31 March 2011 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The AC s
reviewing the internal controls of the Group.
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The AC conducts at least one regular meeting a year in
addition to other meetings that are required for significant
and important issues, and for statutory purposes. The
attendance of the members at the AC Meetings for the
year ended 31 March 2011 is as follows:

Name of Members

Corporate Governance Report
EEREE

BREAMNEZEBUAMEEENMBITZE

fhEHI BERZEGEFEL BT RHIE -
HE_T-——F=A=+—HIEFE K&

FERZBEEGHZBERMT:

Number of attendance/
Number of Meetings

HERE EHRE

BREMEZ

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming 2GRAE LT
Mr. Wong Chi Keung \mZEEE
Mr. Tom Xie AR E
During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Audit

Committee had reviewed the Company’s annual report
for the year ended 31 March 2010 and the interim report
for the six months ended 30 September 2010.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a Nomination
Committee. The duties and functions of the Nomination
Committee recommended in the Code are performed by
the Board collectively with no director being involved in
fixing his/her own terms of appointment and no
Independent Non-executive Director being involved in
assessing his own independence.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and
ensure that the financial statements are in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standard. The Directors also ensure the timely publication
of the financial statements of the Group.

The Statement of external auditors of the Company,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statement of the Group is
set out in the Report of Auditors on page 24.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the total remuneration
of the Group’s auditor for statutory audit services is
HK$1,380,000. They also provided non-audit services to
the Group, which amounted to HK$10,000.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EENSREEBAE[GN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jianging

Mr. Wang, aged 42, is currently the general manager of
Guangzhou Circle Energy Company Ltd. He obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in Industrial Management Engineering
from Zhenjiang Shipbuilding College (now known as the
Jiangsu University of Science and Technology).

Mr. Pan Junfeng

Mr. Pan, aged 54, is currently the deputy general
manager of a shipping company that principally engaged
in oil and bulk goods trading business in Yangtze region.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Dr. Leung, aged 43, is currently a director of Toi Shan
Association of Hong Kong Limited. He has extensive
knowledge and experience in risk management of
financial instruments, treasury business and financial
derivative products. He has served DBS Bank for eight
years and was Senior Vice President in the Treasury and
Markets Division upon his departure from the bank on 22
May 20009.

Dr. Leung started his career in the finance industry in
1996 with Citibank as quantitative analyst in the Equity
Derivatives Asia Department. He had served a few other
financial institutes before joining DBS Bank Ltd as a
financial product specialist as well and had held various
roles in business development, trading and risk
management before joining DBS.

Dr. Leung, a native Hong Kong citizen with Chinese
nationality, holds a Bachelor (First Class Honours) degree
of Science (1990) from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a Master degree of Science in Mathematics (1993)
and a Doctor degree of Philosophy in Mathematics (1996)
from the California Institute of Technology, and a Master
degree of Science in Investment Management (1999)
from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
EERSREBAER/N

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Wong, aged 56, holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of Adelaide in Australia.
He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and CPA Australia; an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a
Responsible Officer for asset management, advising on
securities and advising on corporate finance for Legend
Capital Partners, Inc. under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong was as an executive director, the deputy
general manager, group financial controller and company
secretary of Guangzhou Investment Company Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, for over ten
years. He is also an independent non-executive director
and a member of the audit committee of Asia Orient
Holdings Limited, Asia Standard International Group
Limited, Century City International Holdings Limited,
China Nickel Resources Holdings Company Limited,
China Ting Group Holdings Limited, ENM Holdings
Limited, First Natural Foods Holdings Limited (provisional
liquidators appointed), Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited,
PacMOS Technologies Holdings Limited, Paliburg
Holdings Limited, Regal Hotels International Holdings
Limited and TPV Technology Limited, all of these
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong
has over 32 years of experience in finance, accounting
and management. Mr. Wong was also an independent
non-executive director of Great Wall Motor Company
Limited (resigned on 5 June 2009), International
Entertainment Corporation (resigned on 23 September
2008) and FUJI Food and Catering Services Holdings
Limited (provisional liquidators appointed) (resigned on 24
June 2011).
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Mr. Tom Xie

Mr. Xie, aged 62, has extensive work experience in
economics field. He has had years of experience in high
level organisational management including a senior
management post with a Hong Kong listed company. He
has extensive business and political connections and is
familiar with PRC’s political, economic and business
environment and retail market.

Mr. Xie holds a Diploma in Trade and Economics of Jinan
University in China and is currently a candidate of a
Master’s degree in Gemology with China University of
Geosciences (Beijing).

Mr. Xie is currently a Director and President of Shenzhen
Yihua Jewellery Co., Ltd. He now serves on the following
public bodies: Vice-chairman, China General Chamber of
Commerce Gems and Jewelry Committee and Committee
Member, Guangzhou Tianhe District The Sixth People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He is also Permanent
Honorary Chairman of the Confederacy of Hong Kong
Shanwei Clansmen Limited.

Mr. Lo Wai Hung

Mr. Lo, age 51, obtained a bachelor degree in Commerce
from James Cook University of North Queensland,
Australia. Mr. Lo is an associate member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants in Australia and a fellow member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Lo was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 19 May 2011. Mr. Lo is also
an independent non-executive director of Shangdong
Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited and
Talent Property Group Limited, the shares of both
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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Directors’ Report
EEEWmEE

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associate
are set out in note 36 and note 20 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2011 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 26.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s authorised, issued and fully
paid share capital are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

There is no reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 March 2011.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Wang Jianging (appointed on 14 December 2010)
Mr. Pan Junfeng (appointed on 14 December 2010)
Mr. Lau Ching Kei (resigned on 4 January 2011)

Mr. Yeung Kwai Tong (resigned on 4 January 2011)
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Non-executive director:
Mr. Tam Norman
Hok Cheong

(resigned on 4 January 2011)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Lo Wai Hung (appointed on 19 May 2011)
Dr. Leung Hoi Ming

Mr. Wong Chi Keung

Mr. Tom Xie

In accordance with Article (87) of the Company’s Bye-
laws, all remaining directors retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of securities (the “Listing Rules”)
and considers all the independent non-executive directors
to be independent.
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Directors’ Report
EETEREE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 31 March 2011, the directors and chief executive of
the Company and their respective associates had the
following interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
the Listing Rules (“Model Code”), to be notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”):

ESRTRARRKRSG  EERORTAR
EEcER

=

R—_F——F=ZA=1+—H XRABEER
BAABARBEESBZBEALIRARA R
LEBEAE(ABR A B EHEM(ESF &M
BEPIDEXVE T T 2B E) 2 ki HE
iR ERETHEEARRREESFNHERK
plE3s2MF AR F 2 B LML E - SiRE &
MERTAEFETESFRIZIBEETHTRE
SADAMNEARBNEEBREXIMAERRA
A (B Pl 2 s RORBIAT :

o

U

Number of Shares held

Fi ¥R 43 81 B
Capacity/Nature of Percentage of
Name of Directors interest Long position Short position total holding
EENE S Rty 3a KB FRESE
(Note)
(B &%)
Wang Jianging Controlled corporation 5,670,230,961 - 71.5%
FE RiEEE
Pan Junfeng Controlled corporation 5,670,230,961 — 71.5%

BRI XEEE

Note: Frontier Global Group Limited is wholly owned by Touch Billion
Limited. Touch Billion Limited is held as to 75% by Champion
Golden Limited, in which () Mr. Wang Jianging has 50% of the
voting right; and (ii) Mr. Pan Junfeng has 25% of the voting right.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of
the directors, chief executives of the Company nor their
respective associates had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

As at 31 March 2011, none of the directors of the
Company had any interests in respect of options to
subscribe for the shares of the Company under the
Company’s share option scheme approved and adopted
on 23 August 2002.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Directors’
rights to acquire shares”, none of the directors, their
spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to
subscribe for shares of the Company, or had exercised
any such right during the year, and at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements and as disclosed under the heading
“Related party transactions”, no contracts of significance,
to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year are disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report
EETEREE

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER PERSONS

As at 31 March 2011, so far as was known to the
directors or chief executive of the Company and based
on disclosure of interests forms filed to the Stock
Exchange and the Company, the following persons (other
than the directors or the chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO are set
out below:

TERRREMATZROREBERGER
kxR

—E-—F=ZA=1t—HBH BRARFEFH
AR AR P R0 2 BAR R B K2 P R R R R B A2
Z*E EWBERB  UTAT(NBRARAES

THRAF)NARF RO BEROPHER
EMFETF S5 M EIGRDIE3B6IKRATFE ZER
it R PTRC B 2 R BOR R

Al

JiS
1T

Number of Shares held

Fi ¥ ik 4 B E
Name of Shareholders Notes Capacity/Nature of Long Short Percentage of
interest position position total holding
BREEZE Bt & L V& $:1:3 BE wE FERESLE
Frontier Global Group Limited 1 Beneficial interest 5,670,230,961 — 71.5%
EBRRREEFRAF BaigEn
Jinlong International Holdings Limited 2 Security Interest 5,670,230,961 — 71.5%
TREBBRZERBERAR AR
ADM Galleus Fund | Limited 2 Security Interest 5,670,230,961 - 71.5%
HiRER
ADM Investment Management Limited 2 Investment Manager 5,670,230,961 - 71.5%
KA KR
Note 1:  Frontier Global Group Limited is wholly owned by Touch — MizE1:  FEEIRIREBE AR QR ATouch Bilion Limited %
Billion Limited. Touch Billion Limited is held as to 75% by % # A > Touch Billion Limited 275% # %5 M
Champion Golden Limited, in which (i) Mr. Wang Jianging has Champion Golden Limited¥§%A * H () F=E/F%
50% of the voting right; and (i) Mr. Pan Junfeng has 25% of 4B B50% =R HE I (i) 7 R 18 5 B25% R
the voting right. TRAE o
Note 2:  Jinlong International Holdings Limited is held as to 50%, 29%  Mi#2: S EBEKZERER 28T 5 5 EHADM Galleus
and 21% by ADM Galleus Fund | Limited, Permal ADM Asia Fund | Limited - Permal ADM Asia Debt Fund
Debt Fund Limited and ADM Galleus Fund Il Limited Limited % ADM Galleus Fund Il Limited % 5| % &
respectively, all of these companies are in turn wholly owned EH50% + 29% KR21% #w - MATAZE AR 8 f
by ADM Investment Management Limited in the capacity as ADM Investment Management Limited ff & 1% &
an investment manager. KB EHRE -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, the MREXFEEEIN HRZZT——F=A=+—0H"

directors and chief executive of the Company are not
aware of any other persons who had an interests and/or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers
are as follows:

Directors’ Report
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BE LEABEARTLDES

FA ARBHLEEMAMBRARLERBE - b
EHBEARREEMR LHE S -

TEEFRHAER
B X B E PR R TG 8 R R
BEZESLMT:

Sales tHE#H %
— The largest customer — mAEP 40
— Five largest customers aggregated — A AEFP A 54

Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers were less than 30% of the total
purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associate or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in
the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE FOR SECURITIES

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions (the “Model Code”). Having made specific
enquiry of all directors of the Company, the directors of
the Company have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2011.
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Directors’ Report
EEEREE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of not
less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 March 2011.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

WANG JIANQING
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong, 30 June 2011
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Independent Auditor's Report

Deloitte.
=g

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NGAI LIK INDUSTRIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 26 to 102, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2011, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor's Report
BURHMKES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and
to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
as at 31 March 2011, and of its loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Going concern basis

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note
2 to the consolidated financial statements which indicates
the Group incurred a loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$104,215,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2011 and as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets and its total
liabilities exceeded its total assets by approximately
HK$133,018,000 and HK$132,480,000, respectively.
These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in
note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 June 2011

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
REEZEHWARRE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

2011 2010
—F——F —E-FHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & Ti#&IT FET
Continuing operation BEEEER
Turnover S 8 675,518 849,416
Cost of sales $HE KA (682,074) (855,710)
Gross loss EE (6,556) (6,294)
Other operating expenses Hh & (1,767) (8,174)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (8,023) (13,624)
Administrative expenses ITHRAX (85,621) (70,536)
Other income E g A 2,351 5,376
Gain on debt restructuring B E AR 9 - 185,668
Impairment loss on property, ME BEREBEZ
plant and equipment BIEEE (4,523) (8,775)
Finance costs B & A 10 - (19,658)
(Loss) profit before taxation Br AT (B 18) & 7 (104,139) 63,983
Taxation charge I8 X H 11 (76) (2,646)
(Loss) profit for the year from FEICEEB I ARNFE
continuing operation (E18) a7 (104,215) 61,337
Discontinued operations ERIEEEET 15
Loss for the year from REFDRIEES
discontinued operations E ok - (190,735)
Loss and total comprehensive KAGEBAEMLZ
expense for the vyear, attributable ~ AFEEBE K
to owners of the Company 2HAS @ 12 (104,215) (129,398)
(Loss) earnings per share SR(BE)&F 16
From continuing and FEKERERIE
discontinued operations KBTS
— basic and diluted — BEARNEE (HK1.3 cents#fll) (HK5.5 centsj )
From continuing operation FELEEL
— basic and diluted — EARNEE (HK1.3 centsi&fll) HK2.6 cents/& 1l
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Consolidated Statement ot Financial Position
an 7J ﬁ% ;U( /R #& %‘:Z

At 31 March 2011

R-—ZE——&F=A=+—H

2011 2010
—F——% —ZE-ZTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FA& T
Non-current Assets EREEE
Investment properties "EME 17 - —
Property, plant and equipment M- BEIRRE 18 503 4,896
Intangible assets mEEE 19 - —
Interest in an associate R— & QT
2w 20 38 —
541 4,896
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories FE 21 9,186 95,176
Trade and other receivables and B 5 & H b fE U AR X
prepayments NSEENE- S 22 27,293 45,042
Tax recoverable TW@%E 45 45
Pledged bank deposits DR ITIER 23 686 —
Bank balances and cash RTEEERRS 23 8,857 19,147
46,067 159,410
Current Liabilities HmENE 1
Trade and other payables B 5 & B A ERT R
and accruals L EFTER 24 158,211 174,615
Amounts due to related parties FER B/ EATRIE 25 2,839 —
Amount due to an associate & 15— R B 22 R A
FIE 25 38 —
Tax payable FE AR I8 121 45
Obligations under finance leases Bh & A
— due within one year — —F AN 26 32 32
Provision BB 27 17,844 17,844
179,085 192,536
Net Current Liabilities REBEHEFHE (133,018) (33,126)
Total Assets less Current HEERADHESE
Liabilities (132,477) (28,230)
Non-current Liabilities kREERFE
Obligations under finance leases Bl & A8 A R
— due after one year — —F &8 26 3 35
Deferred taxation IR E T 18 28 - —
3 35
(132,480) (28,265)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
B B OR | R

At 31 March 2011
RZE——F=A=+—H

2011 2010
—F——% —ZT-ZF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5E FHT FE T
Capital and Reserves BAEREE
Share capital % < 29 79,302 79,302
Reserves i1 (211,782) (107,567)
Deficits attributable to owners of RAREBA
the Company JE 1 JE5 At (132,480) (28,265)
Non-controlling interests FEERE S - —
Total Deficits B4k (132,480) (28,265)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 26 to HF26B & F1INREZ G AW ERERER T —
102 were approved and authorised for issue by the —FNA=+BEEZSH ELRBTERT I
Board of Directors on 30 June 2011 and are signed on M TIEERKREE:

its behalf by:

WANG JIANQING PAN JUNFENG
I@RE Bl
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FERERE WK

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_Z——F=-A=-+—HItFE

Attributable
Property Share to owners Non- Total
Share Share Other revaluation options Accumulated of the controlling equity
capital premium reserve reserve  reserve losses Company interests (deficits)
41
L/E S 13 ] /2PN iR #E (B

B Ritnf Ht#e
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Bl 1 RitE RAED i Eh)
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TEx FEx TER TET TFEx TET FTET FTET TET
(note i) (note ii)
(W &xi) (B i)
At 1 April 2009 RZZBZNF
mA—H 79,302 82,844 — 17,460 1,683 (163,556) 17,633 1,020 18,653
Loss and total AEEBBERZER
comprehensive expense X%
for the year - - - - — (129,398) (129,398) - (129,398)
Capital reduction R A EI R (71,372 - 71,372 - - - - - -
Issue of shares BITRA 71,372 12,128 - - - - 83,500 - 83,500
Reclassification adjustment 7 & % = A T B
upon completion of debt  Z A AEHE
restructuring - — - (17,460) — 17,460 - - —
Reclassification adjustment 7 B % 5 2 B
upon lapse of share ZHERE
options - — - - (1,583) 1,583 - - -
Debt restructuring EHEA - - - - - - - (1,020) (1,020)
At 31 March 2010 RZE-Z2F
ZA=+-8 79302 94972 71372 - - (273.911) (28,265 —  (28,269)
Loss and total AEEBEREZA
comprehensive expense Hx e
for the year - - - - - (104,215)  (104,215) —  (104,215)
At 31 March 2011 RZB——F
“A=+-A 79302 94972 71372 - - (378126 (132,480) — (132,480
Notes: B &

(i)

The other reserve represents the credit arising from the capital
reduction where the par value of each existing share was
reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by the cancellation of
HK$0.09 of the paid-up capital on each existing share.

The property revaluation reserve represents the increase in fair
value, net of related deferred taxation charges, of the properties
transferred to investment properties in previous years.

(i

H At 5% 15 8 B U Rk P EE AR 2 MERRER 0 BRR HI R AR
HEHERBEARMNOGE T ZMERAEA  HERR
B Rin 2 E{EHO0.10/8 TTHIR £0.01/E T °

MEERRBEDERBEFEERESREMEMR
EXZMERATEEN ECNBEBEEH A L)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
v/'.F 5 IE: 37 /)IL E %‘:Z

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

2011 2010
—g——F —E-ZF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 Ti#&IT FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEXH
Loss before taxation B 75 Bl & 18 (104,139) (31,096)
Adjustments for: BT EEELARE:
Depreciation of property, plant Y- BEREE
and equipment ZIE 888 19,189
Impairment loss on property, Y- BEREZE
plant and equipment ZOBIEEE 4,523 8,775
Impairment loss on trade and B 5 & H b e R
other receivables and K RTER IR
prepayments ZREEE 12,571 3,097
Interest income B U A (48) (2,540)
(Gain) loss on disposal of LEWE - BE
property, plant and equipment MEEZ
(=) EE (374) 1,601
Reversal of provision on BReGFERE
inventories (3,253) —
Amortisation of land use rights T Hb (S R 2 - 1,066
Exchange loss, net PN B - F - 1,161
Finance lease charges BMEMRNCER - 184
Gain on disposal of mobile HERBEER
division 2 W E - (21,009)
Gain on debt restructuring BEBEHAKE 9 - (185,668)
Impairment loss on assets HESBAGTE
classified as held for sale BEZERE - 52,000
Interest expenses MEXH - 19,474
Net loss on investment properties &Y % E 188 5 - 24,010
Operating cash flows before LEESE A
movements in working capital IRERSRE (89,832) (109,756)
Decrease in inventories FER D 89,243 26,207
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 K H b e U BR X
other receivables and K FE A FRIE R
prepayments (3 n) 5,178 (4,419)
(Decrease) increase in trade and B 5N H M ER
other payables and accruals EXKRETER
() 1% 40 (16,404) 47,696
Increase in provision R A& 180 - 2,669
Cash used in operations CEEEER (11,815) (37,603)
Income taxes paid BB = (2,326)
Income taxes refunded BREIFTSH - 3,860
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING EZEBHEZ
ACTIVITIES H&FRE (11,815) (36,069)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/T\ FE Iﬁ: @ J)IL E %%

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HILEFE

2011 2010
—T——% —E-ZTF
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
oS Ti#&IT FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME BEK
equipment B (3,575) (6,668)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEW¥ - BEXR
plant and equipment B TS EIE 2,931 8,125
Interest received 2 F B 48 2,540
Increase in pledged bank deposits & & ¥ iR 1777 X & /0 (686) —
Amounts received in respect of %) *57%1#% BEZ
assets classified as held for sale B4 - 115,000
Net cash flow on disposal of mobile H & /mﬁi%ﬁzz
division RenEFHE - (195)
Additions to investment properties &A1& & ¥ % = 146)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM "EEE ()
INVESTING ACTIVITIES iR &$E (1,282) 118,656
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEES
Repayments of obligations under  EE@MEHELH 2 EH
finance leases (32) (2,631)
Repayments of bank and other EBERITREMEE
borrowings — (393,620)
Increase in amounts due to related %X ERHE AT FIA
parties N 2,839 —
Net cash outflow on debt BEREHAZE 2R
restructuring R 9 - (95,067)
Interest paid 2AHE = (19,474)
Finance lease charges paid ENREENOER - (184)
New bank and other borrowings EERIFERITR
raised Hivfg & - 332,688
Proceeds from issue of shares BT 2 TS IR - 83,500
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RLEEENFR B (FTHE)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES bR ] 2,807 (94,788)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRFE£FEHEH
CASH EQUIVALENTS ZRYFE (10,290) (12,201)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REVZHRER
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE Re&%EER
YEAR 19,147 31,348
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REZKZEERRASE
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, ZEEEKRE:
represented by bank balances RITEELE2
and cash 8,857 19,147
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
oA B R R AT

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). After the
capital and the group reorganisation (the
“Restructuring”) that took place on 11 January 2010
(the “Effective Date”), the immediate holding
company and ultimate holding company of the
Company became Success Pioneer Limited. On 29
October 2010, a Sale and Purchase agreement was
entered by Success Pioneer Limited and Frontier
Global Group Limited (the “Transaction”). After the
Transaction that took place on 2 November 2010,
the holding company of the Company has been
changed from Success Pioneer Limited to Frontier
Global Group Limited. Frontier Global Group Limited
is a limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and solely controlled by
Touch Billion Limited that is a limited company
incorporated in BVI. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information included in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 36.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
incurred a loss and total comprehensive expense
for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately HK$104,215,000 for the vyear
ended 31 March 2011 (2010: HK$129,398,000) and
as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets and its total liabilities
exceeded its total assets by approximately
HK$133,018,000 (2010: HK$33,126,000) and
HK$132,480,000 (2010: HK$28,265,000),
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given consideration to the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its
available sources of finance in assessing whether
the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group should
be able to continue as a going concern in the
coming year taking into consideration various
measures to improve its financial position which
include, but are not limited to, the following:

(i) Pursuant to a loan agreement dated 24 June
2011 (the “Agreement”), an unsecured and
interest-free loan of HK$61,000,000, which is
repayable after two years from the date of
the Agreement, is provided by Frontier Global
Group Limited, the holding company of the
Company. The directors of the Company
believe that such source of fund would be
adequate to enable the Group to meet its
financial liabilities and obligations as they fall
due for the foreseeable future, thereby
improving the liquidity position of the Group;

(i)  The directors of the Company expect that
payments by the Group in respect of the
accrued royalty expenses amounting to
approximately HK$110,037,000 would not be
required within the next twelve months from
the end of the reporting period; and

(i)  The directors of the Company are looking for
various business alternatives to broaden its
business scope and sources of income by
taking business opportunities to diversify into
other business through investment or
business ventures to improve the profitability
of the Group.

SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_Z——F=ZA=1+—HLLFE

BREE(E)

EREEER AAAEEEERAEE
Ak 2 ABERRAREREUEER
DA A RE ST ABRAY Y ERE

SERKEEREBERERT -

RAVBRRDEFELEELERE -
ARRESERA  BRIZHEANEAEH
BRI NEERERKEFR
STEREEREBRERTY  ARKER
BRUEARR) THISE:

i) BEEHA-_Z——E,A=-+MN
AzExmzE(ZBZED AAF2Z
ERAGRAEBRREERRAGIRE
#H-—Z2E828HRAREEER
61,000,000% 7T * 7E B #% ) #& B 5
RBETMFREE - ARFIESBMHEE -
ZEEBESRBEBRENSAEEFR
NBRTRARERI Az e/mBE
REF HHREAEEZ2RBHE
AR 5

i) AR2REEFEH A£EH®DH
110,037,000 L 2 BT EFEE B
AXBOEARAREPEREZ X
R+—EARSIH: &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Based on the aforesaid factors, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs
(Amendments) issued in 2009

HKFRSs Amendment to HKFRS 5 as
(Amendments) part of Improvements to

HKFRSs issued in 2008

HKFRS 2 Group Cash-settled Share-
(Amendments) based Payment
Transactions
HKFRS 3 (as revised Business Combinations
in 2008)

HKAS 27 (as revised Consolidated and Separate

in 2008) Financial Statements
HKAS 32 Classification of Rights
(Amendments) Issues
HKAS 39 Eligible Hedged ltems
(Amendments)

HK(FRIC) — Int 17  Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners

HK — Int 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements —
Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The application of new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the
amounts reported in these consolidated financial
statements and/or disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective.

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs
(Amendments) issued in 2010°
HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers of
(Amendments) Financial Assets*
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements®
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements®
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Involvement
with Other Entities®
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement®
HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of
(Amendments) Underlying Assets®

HKAS 24 (as revised
in 2009)

Related Party Disclosures®

HKAS 27
(as revised in 2011)

Separate Financial
Statements®

HKAS 28
(as revised in 2011)

Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures®

HK(FRIC) — Int 14
(Amendment)

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement?®

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19  Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity

Instruments?

3.

SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_Z——F=ZA=1+—HLLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010 and 1 January 2011, as appropriate

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2012

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consolidation given in exchange for goods.

The significant accounting policies are set out
below.
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Notes to

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition and up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the investor
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.
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HE—

4.

F-—GZASt—HILER

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of an
associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise any
impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount, any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

From 1 April 2010 onwards, upon disposal of an
associate that results in the Group losing significant
influence over that associate, any retained
investment is measured at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance
with HKAS 39. The difference between the previous
carrying amount of the associate attributable to the
retained interest and its fair value is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that
associate had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that
associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when
it loses significant influence over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate that are not related to
the Group.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts received and receivable for goods sold
and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

U it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in
respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Income for provision of after-sale services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Rental and management service income is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.
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Notes to

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably. Interest income from a
financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
other than buildings and leasehold improvements,
on a reducing balance basis. The depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Building and leasehold improvements are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the leases or over their estimated
useful lives, whichever is shorter, and after taking
into account their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the
relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit
or loss.
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F-—GZASt—HILER

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Investment
properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment property are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as
a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group’s policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception
of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “land use rights” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified
as an operating lease.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal
of the foreign operation. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchanges prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity.
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Notes to

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All the borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payment to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
is charged as expenses when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

In addition, the Group’s contributions to a local
municipal government retirement scheme in the
People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are
expensed when employees have rendered service
entiting them to the contributions while the local
municipal government in the PRC undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retirees of the qualified staff in
the PRC.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from the profit as
reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and an associate, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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Notes to

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development
phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

U the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale;

. the intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial
and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible
asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Research and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible asset is measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method.

Impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible assets
At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. In addition, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that they may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.
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Notes to

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets and intangible assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are loans and
receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

U breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

. the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 7 days to 30 days, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables and accruals, and amounts due to related
parties and an associate) are measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire, or the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and control of the financial assets.

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

RONIEEBERRA

20114 3R

4.

TESHER(E)

SRMIAH)

THEERRAEZ
SEERTTZEMEEREAEET
ENREBAITLANLHZEEN RS
BMABLEBRASETAZERZENR -

A zE T AT ERAREERHREM
BRERZEENSER ZEFNAL -

EEFEZ
ERMEZADAESRAB Z #EHK AN
ARDEMRBHEZMBMAZ 2T -
ERNESIZESRABEZENAER
FHRERzREHM  ERRBE G
RARRREMRZFE -

MEFRXTIRERN T RHER -

THERE

TRHEBEEREEINEMEMENR K
RENBRBEALR—RBEREZKE)
TRBERFEAREEEXATE -

REEZTA
RRABBEFTZRAERZTETNIRE WA
BREHBEEETRAE -

BE R

FREERDRSAREZEMNE I
AEMEECERLAKECKERS
MEERARZBRE DR R KB H K
EHEER - SR EE S WEUERER o



Notes to

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect is material).

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and directors of the Group
For share options which were granted to employees
and directors of the Group after 7 November 2002
and vested on or after 1 January 2005, the fair
value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
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4.

F-—GZASt—HILER

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options granted to employees and directors of the Group
(Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits
(losses). In relation to share options granted before
1 April 2005, the Group chooses not to apply
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payments” with respect to
share options granted after 7 November 2002 and
vested before 1 April 2005, no amount has been
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of these equity-settled share-based
payments.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 4, the
directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment
loss, the Group takes into consideration the
estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). When the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2011,
the carrying amount of trade receivables is
HK$3,305,000 (2010: HK$37,024,000).

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for property, plant and
equipment at the end of the reporting period.
Property, plant and equipment are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When
value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
the expected future cash flow, impairment losses
may arises. The carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment as at 31 March 2011 after
impairment loss amounting to HK$4,523,000 (2010:
HK$8,775,000) was HK$503,000 (2010:
HK$4,896,000). Details are set out in note 18.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated allowances for inventories

The management estimates the net realisable value
of inventories based primarily on the latest market
prices and current market conditions. The Group
carries out an inventory review at the end of each
reporting period and makes allowance on obsolete
and slow moving items to write off or write down
inventories to their net realisable values. Where the
expectation on the net realisable value is lower
than the carrying amount, an impairment may arise.
At 31 March 2011, the -carrying amount of
inventories is HK$9,186,000 (2010: HK$95,176,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
debts, which includes amounts due to related
parties and an associate, and obligations under
finance leases disclosed in notes 25 and 26
respectively, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically. As a part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new
share issue or the issue of new debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7 &®WIA
(@)  Categories of financial instruments @ SWMIESE
2011 2010
—2——F —ZT-IZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FH T
Financial assets EHEE
Loans and receivables (including cash & 3% & & W BR Z (B 1
and cash equivalents) RekRESEEER) 36,784 63,509
Financial liabilities eMER
Amortised cost 5 A AR 161,088 174,615
(o)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b HEEREEESEREX

The Group’s major financial instruments
include trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables and accruals, and
amounts due to related parties and an
associate. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

AEEZTESRTABEES R
Hib BRI S B BEITFR
RITHEBERE EHREMEN
ERNESER URERZEE
EALR —BBMEALZHRE-
ZETMTAZHEBRSHENZE
BE - -HZSSRITARABZER
EREmERR(EERR) - FEM
REkRBESER - ADRIEZSE
Rz BRERTX - EEEER
RERZEZRBUBREES 21HEE
FIA KRB I A B ]AT ©
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SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

(b)

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. SEMIAE)
Financial risk management objectives and policies b HEEREEEERIEK(E)
(Continued)
Market risk T5E R
Foreign currency risk management SINE B[ B
Several subsidiaries of the Company have RARBZHEM B ARG AINEELT
foreign currency sales and purchases, which HERERE - B AR B R INE
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. [= B o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign RmERH  NEBUIINEFFEZ
currency denominated monetary assets and HEEEEREYaGE REERNT
monetary liabilities at the end of reporting
period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
HE EfE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—2——& —_T-TF Z¥——F _—T-TH
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAHETT TERT FHET
United States dollars (‘USD”) % 7T 2,939 — 6,741 —
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR 547 2,494 262 18,081
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) BT 2 4 - —

The Group is mainly exposed to the
currencies of USD, RMB and MOP.

As Hong Kong dollars is currently pegged to
USD, management considers that exposure to
exchange fluctuation in respect of USD is
limited.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2010: 5%) increase and
decrease in Hong Kong dollars against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2010: 5%) is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% (2010: 5%) change
in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in loss for the
year where Hong Kong dollars strengthens 5%
(2010: 5%) against the relevant currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

7.

GEUBmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE_Z——F=ZA=Z=1+—HLLFE

ERMIA(H)
0 HEAREEAEREE(E

mEmEE (&)
SMERREE (B)

Effect on loss

HEEznE
2011 2010
—F——% —E-ZF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T#IT FHET
RMB AR 14 779
MOP BT = —

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
foreign exchange risk as the exposure at the
end of the reporting period does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties
provided by the Group is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

EEEBERS ARERSHERE
PRES BRI ERRZFEARNZ
[\ B - B BRE D AT I N RR E
BIMNER R ©

EEmRE
R-E-—TF=A=+—H X&
EEHARSEHRERTAS
EAREREEMSIBAEEHRE
MBBRAZEXEERR AR
EMBMAKMRZEADER S
MEEZREEMESL -

SEEBREEERR AEEERE
BECZk—#HABREFTEER
B EEEHNEMEZEER A
TR EURE W EE ARz
B e tbsh REBEERNREMK
FEERENESES 2ATKE S
BB ERRTATREOEEELR
M2 RERE UM E - ARF
EERRAKEZEERBRE AR
fE 1K o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ma

B 75 ¥ 3% B AR

For the year ended 31 March 2011

HE—

7.

F-—GZASt—HILER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Revenue from one (2010: one) customer, an
independent third party, in the EMS business
individually represents more than 10 per cent
of the Group’s total revenue (see note 8(b)).

The Group has concentration of credit risk as
99% (2010: 67%) of the total trade receivables
were due from two customers in EMS
segment that are independent third parties.
The Group has assessed the credit
worthiness of these two customers and noted
that these two customers have good historical
repayment records and low default rates. In
this regard, the directors of the Company
considered that the credit risk is low.

The remaining customers come from over 40
countries. Therefore, the Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to significant liquidity
risk at the end of the reporting period, the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets and its total liabilities exceeded its
total assets by approximately HK$133,018,000
(2010: HK$33,126,000) and HK$132,480,000
(2010: HK$28,265,000), respectively.
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AEERREHEREEAHEANR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

GEUBmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE_Z——F=ZA=Z=1+—HLLFE

7. EMIAE)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies b)) HEXEREBEERAR(E)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) FEHELEE(E)
The following table details the Group’s TERHFNAEEBETELHREEZ
remaining contractual maturity for its non- BRINEHNIEEBER - ZEWKRTIR
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have BAEEFERER c&FASM
been drawn up based on the undiscounted ErzemaEsEMRAeRE
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the MmE - ZERMEFREKREE
earliest date on which the Group can be ZITEESHMBEREFHPOERE
required to pay. Such non-derivative financial FERMKREERE MEBHEMNBERAR
liabilities outstanding at the end of the EZHRERE °
reporting period are considered as if
outstanding for the whole year. The table
includes both interest and principal cash
flows.
Weighted 0-60
average days or Total Carrying
interest repayable 61-180  181-365 1-2 2-3 Over undiscounted amount at
rate on demand days days years years 3 years cash flows 31.03.2011
EHE R-T-BF
mig 0-60B 5 Re#® =A=t-H
THHE  HEREE 61-1808 181-365H 126  2-3% 3EUL Lk ZREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TET TET THET TR TExT TERL TET TET
2011 —5-—-%
Non-derivative financial ~ ¥4 &RBRE
liabilities
Trade and other payables BHREMERER
and accruals REHER = 41,087 116,924 = = = = 158,211 158,211
Amounts due to related EN2EEEEAL
parties A - 2,839 = = = = = 2,839 2,839
Amount due to an associate  fEfT — B A A
FE - 38 - - - - - 38 38
44,164 116,924 = = - = 161,088 161,088
Weighted 0-60
average days or Total Carrying
interest repayable 61-180  181-365 1-2 2-3 Over  undiscounted amount at
rate on demand days days years years 3 years cash flows 31.03.2011
EBE WZT-TF
mig 0-60H 5 ReRhe =ZA=t-AH
FHAR  KEREE 611808 181-365H 2% 2-3% 3FNE k] ZEEE
% HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TAEL FEL FEr  FEx  FET  FEx FEL TAT
2010 —%-%%
Non-derivative financial ~ ¥fT£&RMERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ EZREMEMER
and accruals REFER - 174,615 - - - - - 174,615 174,615
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SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(©) Fair values
The fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating
and reportable segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (i.e. the board of
directors) for the purpose of allocating resources to
segments and assessing their performance.

The Group’s reportable and operating segments
include electronics manufacturing services business
(“EMS business”) and property rental and provision
of management services (“property investment”).
The EMS business is engaged in design,
manufacture and sale of electronic and electrical
products while property investment is engaged in
property rental and provision of management
services.

The property investment segment was discontinued
during the year ended 31 March 2010 (see note
15). The Group is currently engaged in EMS
business only. The Group’s results from continuing
operation are derived from EMS business, which
relates to the manufacture and sales of electronic
products and represents an operating segment
under HKFRS 8.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEBmRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE_Z——F=ZA=Z=1+—HLLFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. Z2HBER(E)
(@  Geographical information @ WHEEH

The following table provides an analysis of
the Group’s sales from continuing operation
by geographical market and the Group’s non-
current assets by geographical location of the
assets of the continuing operation, irrespective
of the origin of the goods manufactured or
services rendered:

TREH#RASERLETSE D2
FEREXBHERAEBRFE
REXGEEWBE D ZHERDE
EoM MAmARES IR
AR5 2 R 3

Turnover Non-current assets
'g % gﬁ R E g E
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——-F -—T-TF ZT——-F -—T-ITF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FET THET TAT
United States of America EFIBAR 266,987 412,463 = -
Netherlands 12 3 60,823 47,870 - —
Canada mex 47,266 35,911 - —
Chile =l 33,303 21,654 - —
Panama Be5 27,656 19,036 — —
Brazil i} 19,625 46,322 - —
France by 15,366 38,715 - —
Hong Kong 5% 2,421 10,559 541 4,896
The PRC H 23,603 21,975 - —
Others H 178,468 194,911 - -
675,518 849,416 541 4,896
Major customers information by FEEFEH

The Group has concentration of credit risk as
99% (2010: 67%) of the total trade receivables
were due from two customers in EMS
segment that are independent third parties.

Revenue from one (2010: one) customer, an
independent third party, in the EMS business
amounted to approximately HK$266,976,000
(2010: HK$316,159,000), which individually
represents more than 10 per cent of the
Group’s total revenue.

AEBHBREEHZEERR  B5
JEW PR AT 299% (T —FTF:
67%) 2K B FE IREMS 75 &8 2 M 4 %8 32
E=HEP-

REEMSEK —RBUE=FHEF
ZE—ZF: —R) 2B EY
266,976,000 (= & — T F:
316,159,000/ ) * BB A EBE 4
I 25 #110% ©
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SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

9.  GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING

During the year ended 31 March 2011, there was
no debt restructuring.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the
Restructuring was completed on the Effective Date.
In order to reorganise the Group and to facilitate
the implementation of the group reorganisation and
creditor scheme (“Creditor Scheme”), which split
the Group into a group comprising the Company
and certain subsidiaries retained under the control
of the Company (“Retained Group”) and a group
comprising other subsidiaries (“Scheme
subsidiaries”) which were controlled by the
administrators appointed under Creditor Scheme
(the “Administrators’ Vehicle”), the Scheme
Subsidiaries were transferred to the Administrators’
Vehicle of the Creditor Scheme. The Group ceased
to control the Scheme Subsidiaries after the
transfer.

The liabilities of those Scheme Subsidiaries that
were engaged in EMS business (‘EMS Scheme
Subsidiaries”) which had been released or
discharged were set out below. The liabilities of the
other Scheme Subsidiaries which were not engaged
in EMS business (“Other Scheme Subsidiaries”)
which had also been released or discharged were
set out in note 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEBmRMNE

GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING (Continued) 9. EBEA Y% (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE_Z——F=ZA=Z=1+—HLLFE

2010
—E-TF
Notes HK$’000
B 3 FAET
Liabilities released or discharged: EffK/EEA®E:
Bank overdraft RITEX 2,373
Trade and other payables and B 5 & HAh FE T BR X
accruals MEGER 76,349
Obligation under finance lease Bh & M A AR 891
Provision for taxation i IA B 105,307
Deferred taxation (note 28) iR E T IR 11,531
(i) 196,451
Bank borrowings RITEE 512,539
Total liabilities of EMS Scheme E R R 5% (BEMSET
Subsidiaries released or WEBAFlzBEERE
discharged 708,990
Proceeds from the issuance of BITHEETERARA
shares to be transferred to the Z B fn 2 TS I8
Administrators’ Vehicle (ii) (73,500)
635,490
Net assets of EMS Scheme 2 EUH HEREMS & 216 B A 7
Subsidiaries derecognised ZEBEMAT)
(see below) (848,500)
286,990
Surplus of assets over liabilities of HtrEHB AR ZEE
Other Scheme Subsidiaries B & & EsE (f 5E15)
(note 15) (101,322)
Gain on debt restructuring SEREEBRNED
attributable to continuing ER N
operation 185,668
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SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

9. GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING (Continued)

Notes:

(i) This amount represents the aggregate Scheme
Indebtedness (as defined in the jointly announcement of
the Company and the board of directors of Success
Pioneer Limited dated 24 February 2009), indebtedness
and liabilities (actual or contingent) of the Retained Group
and the EMS Scheme Subsidiaries released and
discharged at the Effective Date.

(if) 7,137,150,000 shares with par value of HK$0.01,
representing approximately 90% of the enlarged issued
share capital of the Company, were issued and allotted to
the former holding company, Success Pioneer Limited, for
a cash consideration of HK$83.5 million (approximately
HK$0.012 per share). Based on the Creditor Scheme, part
of the proceeds from the issuance of the shares of
HK$70,000,000 was made available to the Administrators’
Vehicle and HK$3,500,000 was used to settle part of the
cost, charges, expenses and disbursements in connection
with the Creditor Scheme (the “Costs of Restructuring”).

Analysis of carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
of the EMS Scheme Subsidiaries, over which
control was lost is as follows:

9. EBEAUZ(H)

GEX

0] e EERERAMERRRBEEIED O
BERANAREERERAANEFEN -2
NFEZA-tHANEZHEAMH  REE
EREMSFHEMBARZERERAE(BEX
RR) 2 -

(ii) 7,137,150,0008% T {£0.017%8 7T 2 f&% 13 (15 A 2
A ERBEBHITRAL0%) B BT RERT
MERAREBRARAG BHeEA
83,500,000/ 7T (49 & A80.012/8 7T) - R E &
BAGE BORODZBSME XA
70,000,000 TE XN FEBARA " &
3,500,000/ 7T A LA 2 1+ & 8 A 5T I 45 8 2 2B
DA BR A RBHE(TEAKAR] -

BEREESBEZEMSEHEIMB AR ZE
ENBBEREEINOT:

2010

—E-FF

HK$'000

FET

Property, plant and equipment Y BELEE 252,710

Land use rights T fE A 19,166

Inventories FE 7,197

Tax recoverable A Y (5] 7 18 43,634

Bank balances and cash RITHEENER S 23,940

Trade and other receivables and prepayments 5 5 K HoAth JfE U AR 5k K%

TER FRIE 2,873

Non-controlling interests AR = (1,020)
Net assets less non-controlling interests of EMS & BUH #E REMSET 1B B A A

Scheme Subsidiaries derecognised LR EERIEERER 348,500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEMBEBRRWMTE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE—_Z——F=A=+—RHLFE

EHEARE(E)
EHEMZRERLFERIIMT

9. GAIN ON DEBT RESTRUCTURING (Continued) 9.

Net cash outflow on debt restructuring is set out

as below:
2010
—_E-FF
HK$'000
FH T
Cash and cash equivalent balances derecognised: EEUEER 2B & KR &
ZLEIEH :
Bank balances and cash BITHEFERER S 23,940
Bank overdraft RITHEX (2,373)
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITEE(XZST
(made available to Administrators’ Vehicle) EREARTR
and payment of Costs of Restructuring ST EBEK A 73,500
95,067
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MERAE
Continuing operation and
consolidated
HEEEEBRES
2011 2010
—g——F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$000
TER T T
Interest on bank and other ARAFRNEBEHEEZ
borrowings wholly repayable RITREMEE
within five years = (19,474)
Finance lease charges BEHEN s ER - (184)
— (19,658)
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mE R RN

For the year ended 31 March 2011

BE_ZT-——F=ZA=1T-BHLHFE

11. TAXATION CHARGE

1. BHEXH
Discontinued
Continuing operation operations Consolidated
RECEEY ERLEGERER &8
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

“5-—-% “F-%% Z%--% “T-%F ZF--F -“T-%F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TET THL TET T FET FHEL

The credit (charge) comprises: Be (Tt pkE:
Current taxation REEHE
Hong Kong B
— Provided for the year - AEEEE (76) - - - (76) -
— Overprovision in prior - BEFER
years BEE - 3,860 - - - 3,860
PRC Enterprise Income Tax HEIREAEH
— Provided for the year - FEERE - (2,000) - (111,081) - (113,081)
— Underprovision in prior - BAEER
years ErRE - (4,506) - - - 4,508)
(76)  (2646) - (11,081 (76  (13727)
Deferred taxation (note 28) ERHE - - - 15,425 - 15,425
Taxation charge for the year REERBEL M (76) (2,646) - (95,656) (76)  (98,302)
(@) Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% @ BEBENGHIRWESFE 25 E
of the estimated assessable profit for both REE I 216.5% 5T E o M RERE
years. Taxation for other jurisdictions is BHBEDREBESAEER 2 E B
calculated at the rates prevailing in the MEHE -

respective jurisdictions.
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11. TAXATION CHARGE (Continued)

(b)  Tax appeal relating to Scheme Subsidiaries

(1)

In previous years, the Group appealed to
the Board of Review against determination
made by the Inland Revenue Department
(the “IRD”) that some profits of certain
Scheme Subsidiaries (“Subsidiaries”) for
the years of assessment 1991/92 to
1995/96 should be Hong Kong sourced
and subject to 50% of Hong Kong Profits
Tax (the “Tax Appeal”). The Board of
Review delivered its decision (the “Board’s
Decision”) of the Tax Appeal whereby it
dismissed the appeal of one of the
subsidiaries (the “Said Subsidiary”) but
allowed the appeals of all other
subsidiaries. The Said Subsidiary has
appealed to the Court of First Instance of
High Court and the Court of Appeal of
High Court, against the Board’s Decision
and both of the appeals were dismissed
in December 2007 and October 2008,
respectively. The Said Subsidiary has
further lodged an appeal (the “Final
Appeal”) to the Court of Final Appeal (the
“CFA”") and the Final Appeal hearing was
held on 8 July 2009 but the CFA has
reserved its judgment of the appeal at
that date.

In addition, for the years of assessment
of 1996/97 to 2004/05, the IRD issued
notices of assessment to the Group
regarding the taxability of profits of the
Subsidiaries. The Group had already
lodged objections against these
assessments (“Objections”).

At 31 March 2009, amounts of
HK$8,991,000 and HK$38,503,000 have
been paid to the IRD in relation to the
Tax Appeal and the Objections as noted
in (1) and (2) respectively and these
amounts have been included in the
taxation recoverable, which was
derecognised upon the completion of
debt restructuring as mentioned in note
9.

SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011

HE-_Z——F=ZA=1+—HLLFE

1. WEXH(E)
o) HEWBADZBELS

(1)

RBEFE AEBHEFBEH
HBR(HBERDRRE TEE
WBAal((ZEWBARDR
—NMWN—F N=F=2—hnh
AE/NANFREFEMESE
ZETHAMNKREEE  WEH
M50% & & F 15 T 2 R E M
LRz agiRd LRI
BEFD - MBEFEZEEE
R LEHFELAT(ZES
AT EEBREEP KK
BRal(ZWBRARDZHRB
FHF-BHBRBEEMHEEA
Az L&F - ZMWBRARERZ
BgrATREEER 2HE
EREEEERZ EREE
BHEF WMELEFED RN
BT E+_ARZEEN
FHAEEKD - ZMBAFH
Mg ERRED FSF(&KE
FD O MEREFERZZEE
NEELANBRITERMA - BER
EHRBERRBEE LEFHZ
H SR o

AN s —RANNENEF
EZETNFE/TRERHF
B HERMZENBARZ
RMELHNHE AR AER
BEHAMRBA  AEEEHZ
EBREERE((RE]) -

R-ETZANF=ZA=+—8"
REBE D BIFH () R QAT
BZRBLEHFERERAHB
B X 18,991,000 Tt K&
38,503,000 7T * A B k&8
ERFATTRERIEA @ WZE
RIBE R a4FTit 2 EH =
TR EFEUEER -
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SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

11. TAXATION CHARGE (Continued)

(b)  Tax appeal relating to Scheme Subsidiaries (Continued)

)

The Commissioner of Inland Revenue
had issued a writ in the District Court
(the “Said Proceedings”) against the
Said Subsidiary to recover a sum of
around HK$33,222,000 allegedly being
the tax due and payable by the Said
Subsidiary for the years of assessment
2000/01 to 2003/04. A hearing took
place at the District Court and a
judgment was delivered against the Said
Subsidiary (the “Said Judgment”). The
Said Subsidiary has lodged an
application for, inter alia, setting aside
and stay of execution of the Said
Judgment in District Court. The
application was declined in December
2008. The Said Subsidiary was in the
course of seeking leave to appeal to the
Court of Appeal of High Court. The
hearing was fixed in February 2010.
Upon the completion of debt
restructuring, the Said Subsidiary was
derecognised.

In respect of the Tax Appeal and the
Objections as described in (1) and (2)
respectively, the Group has made
provisions of HK$12,781,000 for the Tax
Appeal and HK$68,030,000 for the
Objections in respect of the potential
tax liabilities in its consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
March 2009 in accordance with the
IRD’s assessments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. TAXATION CHARGE (Continued)

(b)  Tax appeal relating to Scheme Subsidiaries (Continued)

©)

On 24 July 2009, the Said Subsidiary
as described in (1), the CFA concluded
that the additional assessments raised
by the IRD for the years of assessment
1991/92 to 1995/96 were not validly
made by the IRD. However, the CFA
held that the IRD can raise additiona
assessments for the vyears of
assessment 1993/94 to 1995/96 on a
different basis. Up to the date of
approval for lissuance of the
consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2010, the IRD
had not yet issued any new additiona
assessments. Pursuant to the judgment
of the CFA issued on 24 July 2009, the
IRD has revised the additional
assessments approval for issuance of
these consolidated financial statements
for the years of assessment 1991/92
and 1992/93 of the Said Subsidiary
concluding that there was no additional
amounts of tax payable for the said two
years of assessment. Accordingly, the
IRD has refunded the Tax Reserve
Certificates purchased for the said two
years of assessment (being the tax
previously held over conditionally) to the
Said Subsidiary. The total amount of
Tax Reserve Certificates of
HK$3,860,000 together with interests of
HK$2,516,000 were redeemed by the
Said Subsidiary in October 2009.

SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011

HE-_Z——F=ZA=1+—HLLFE

1. WEXH(E)
(b) STEIMEAD 2B LR (E)

©)

RZEBEZNFEA=-+TA
BT 2 ZHBARME
REBARHARBEEBH® —NAN
—FN_FE-NANEEF/
NAERREEMEL ZE
SNEERLAE IR o AT - IREBEIERR
FIRFH T B A AR R Hoh A
R—ANh=F NhEUFEE—Hh
NAF W AFRBHEEEED
OB B2 ETEE
E_ZT-TF=F=+—8It
FEZEEVBRER 2B -
IR R SR P N Snn a1 v
BONGER - RBERBERR
—ERAFELA-tMAEMK
ZHR - MBS Bz M
BRABEIR—NAN—F / h=_F
M—NNZF N=FRHEF
EZENTER BT LM
ERBFEEILEELMERT
HeRBl REBRAZMNEA
AR E FRERRFEFE
BAZRI AR BIEHE
ERHMZToBIE) - ZWBA
AR-ZEENFTAEELEE
43,860,000/ Tt < fi# Fi % &
[[2,516,000/% 7T 2 F| &, °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

11.  TAXATION CHARGE (Continued) 1. HEXH(E)
The taxation charge for the year from continuing AFEEHERLLEEB 2HREITEERE
operation can be reconciled to the (loss) profit AEABMAREK BB ATN(EER) & T‘JZ
before taxation per the consolidated statement of HERMT

comprehensive income as follows:

2011 2010
—F——%5 —ET-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFi#& T FET
(Loss) profit before taxation FESEER 2 BRBA
from continuing operation (E18) %7 (104,139) 63,983
Taxation credit (charge) at domestic 1% 78 b AT 15 1 7 £16.5%
income tax rate of 16.5% (ZZT—TF :16.5%)
(2010: 16.5%) SAEZHIER S (X H) 17,183 (10,557)
Tax effect of expenses not IR -
deductible for tax purpose tﬁ‘ka/‘ (3,576) (24,409)
Tax effect of income not taxable for 78R U A 2
tax purpose Mg 80 40,554
Underprovision in prior years i@{iif;ﬁéﬁW:E - (646)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERHIEEIE 2
recognised MBTE (13,184) (7,600)
Effect of different tax rates of 750/\11*27/2 REEE
subsidiaries operating in other M8 AaE AR E
jurisdictions EECZHBTE - 12
Others Htp (579) —
Taxation charge for the year from  #HEBRLEE 2
continuing operation FARIB X (76) (2,646)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRMNE

LOSS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE

FOR THE YEAR

Continuing operation

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_Z——F=ZA=1+—HLLFE

12. XEEFBEREZERIER

Discontinued operations

Consolidated

RECRER BRLEEEE &8
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
—%--§ _2-T% Z%--§ _T-Tf% CZ¥--§ _T-%%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THL TAT FHT FET THT FHL
Loss and total comprehensive expense FEBERZEMT AR
for the year has been arrived at REIIGINE
after charging (crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) EESEAEak) 1,208 12,701 - - 1,208 12,701
Contributions to retirement benefit KBTIz RIKEN
schemes of other staff SRR 266 615 - - 266 615
Other staff costs: EBIRA:
— severance payment - BHE - 32,129 - - - 32,129
— salaries and -HeR
other staff benefits Hitt BT 140,264 143,635 - 977 140,264 144,612
Total staff costs BIKAHE 141,738 189,080 - 977 141,738 190,057
Amortisation of land use rights TiERE SR - 303 - 763 - 1,066
Depreciation of property, plant and nE- BER
equipment: HEIE:
— owned assets - BEEE 888 17015 - 1,890 888 18,905
— assets held under - RERERD
finance leases EBEVEE = 284 - - - 284
888 17,299 - 1,890 888 19,189
Auditor's remuneration B E 1,380 2,821 - 47 1,380 2,868
Cost of inventories recognised as BARRT ZFERA
expense’ 682,074 855,710 - 10,134 682,074 865,844
Exchange loss (gain), net FELEE W) 1,767 1377 - 216) 1,767 1,161
Gain on disposal of mobile division HERBER W - - - (21,009) - (21,009)
Loss on disposal of assets classified  HEPEAFELEEL
as held for sale Bf - - - 52,000 - 52,000
Impairment loss on (waiver of) trade ~ ZZEUERZ
receivables HEBEHE) 5,530 7579 - (4.489) 5,530 3,097
Impairment loss on other receivables  E R R 2 REEE 7,041 - - - 7,04 -
Impairment loss on property, plant and %1%« BER&REZ
equipment WEBR 4,523 8,775 - - 4,523 8,775
Reversal of provision on inventories BREGERRE (3,253) - - - (3,253) -
Interest income FlEBA (48) (2,540) - - (48) (2,540)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HENE BERREZ
plant and equipment (h&)E# (374) 1,601 - - (374) 1,601
Net loss on investment properties RENE BETE - - - 24010 - 24,010
Operating lease rentals in respect of BTz EL£RNAS
building premises 973 339 - 317 973 3,510
Rental and management services ReRERRBEUA
income net of direct expenses NBRERBRATAT
amounting to HK$nil (2010: (Z2-%F:
HK$2,159,000) 2,159,000/ 1) - — - (4,566) - (4,566)

*

Direct labour costs included in cost of inventories recognised
as an expense amounted to HK$91,331,000

(2010:

HK$112,320,000) are also included in other staff costs.

*

SINERRAX ZFERAZEESIRA
/391,331,000/8 7T (= & — F 4 : 112,320,000
AT IMAI A E A B TR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GAEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the
directors of the Company were as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2011

Mr. Wang  Mr. Pan Mr. Yeung
Jianging Junfeng Kwai Tong

13. EEM%
ONSENAATEEMEEENT:

IgF e

b3

x4

HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER
(Note i)  (Note i)

BE_T——F=-A=+—HLEE

Mr. Tam Dr. Mr.

Mr. Lau  Norman Hok  Leung Wong Mr. Total
Ching Kei Cheong Hoi Ming Chi Keung Tom Xie 2011

el LR HEE  REH  AZE  d#E Z%--

£E %4 k& @t ke k& F8H
HK$'000 HKS'000  HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000
TET TERL TEn TEx TR TET 2 TER

(Note iii) (Note

iii) (Note i) (Noteii)  (Noteii) (Note ii)

(W) (faei)  (Haki) (W) (WHtiin) (&) (&) (WakiD)
Fees we 90 90 136 136 136 180 240 180 1,188
Other emoluments Etode
Basic salaries and allowance EXESREH - - - - - - - - -
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes BB EH R - - 10 10 - - - - 20
Total emoluments Heas 90 90 146 146 136 180 240 180 1,208

Year ended 31 March 2010

Mr. Yeung

BE_T-—FTHE=A=+—-HLEE

Mr. Tam
Mr.Tam  Mr.Ho  Norman

Dr.lam Ms.Ting Ms.Tng ~ Mr.Lam  Cheuk Mr Yeung MrLlau  Mr.Ng Yuk Sang, Lok Hok Dr.Leung Mr.Wong Mr. Tom Total
Man Chan  Lai Ling Lai Wah Shing Ngai ~ Kwong Kwai Tong Ching Kei Chi Yeung ~ Sammy  Cheong  Cheong  Hoi Ming Chi Keung Xe 2010
wxg TEx TEE MER B BERA HWIE  RFH EME A% BEE REM EzR #ER %%
Bt &t &t e Rf P . 1 rE e fiE Rf Bt & RE EBF
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000  HK$000
Thr Thn TEr TEn TEn TEn TEr TEn TEn TErn TEn Thn TErn TEn TEn
(Note i) (Noteiv) (Notei) (Notei) (Notei) (Noteii) (Noteil) (Notei) (Note) (Notei) (Noteil) (Notei)  (Notei) (Noteil)
(e (W) (mitw)  Oha) (Waw)  (mshi) Obaki)  Obitw) (W) Obstw) Omaki)  Rsh) (Rt (i)
Fees ne 1939 743 - 180 426 36 36 180 180 120 36 36 48 36 3,99
Other emoluments ifpMe
Basic salaries and alowance  EAFEREE 3000 1821 86 JZC—Y - - - - - - - - - 860
Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes 1l 11 1l 11 1l - - - - - - - - - 5
Total emoluments iEEE 4950 2075 862 965 3141 36 36 180 180 120 36 36 48 % 120
Non-contractual payments, for ~ MAIEZXH
loss of office paid to former FANEETE:
directors by:
The Company's subsidiaries AT
WEAR 1,391 993 789 583 1197 = = - = - = - = - 4,993
Notes: B 5 -
0] The respective director appointed on 14 December 2010 (i EREER_T—ZTF+_ATHAEZEFE
(ii) The respective director appointed on 19 January 2010 (ii) FHREEFR_Z—ZTF-—ATLAEZHE
(iii) The respective director appointed on 19 January 2010 (iii) EHEER - ZF—A+NLAEZAY
and resigned on 4 January 2011 RZT——F—AMNBHT
(v)  The respective director resigned on 18 February 2010 vy FAHEER-_Z-ZF_A+N\BHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
working for the Group during the year ended 31
March 2011, all of whom are not directors of the
Company, four of them were directors of the
Company before the Restructuring and two of them
are directors of the subsidiaries before and after
Restructuring, and one of them is the son of these
two directors. The emoluments of the two
individuals who are two directors of the subsidiaries
before and after the Restructuring and that of their
son were within the range from HK$8,500,001 to
HK$10,000,000, while the emolument of the
remaining individual who was a director of the
Company before the Restructuring was within the
range from HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000. The
emoluments of these four individuals are included
in the disclosure of key management personnel
emoluments in note 33(b). The emoluments of the
five individuals for the year ended 31 March 2011
were as follow:

14.

SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_Z——F=ZA=1+—HLLFE

EEME
REE-_ZT——F=ZA=+—HLFE"
ERREAEB AR EsHTMALZS
FIEEMAALTHINIIEARTIES - MHEFP
MEATREAMALRRRESE  REF
MBAATREHATEBEEWNB AR 2
EE NEF—RBATAZMBESZR
F o oREAFNKEEMNBARESIME
AT REEZ 7F2 < N 8,500,001
7 7T 210,000,000 7T - Ep—RBREMH
MABARBEEZALTZHMEN T
3,000,001 JT £3,500,0007% 7T 2 [ ° #%
Mz AL 2B I E 5 AN F330b) 2 E
EEBABMEe o HEER REZEZ
T——FZAZT—HILEFE ZHALA
T2MEmT:

HK$’000

FA&TT

Basic salaries and allowance EARF& NERL 26,659
Discretionary or performance — BB E KRB IR 2 ELL ()

based bonuses (Note) 6,000

Contributions to retirement benefit 3R {K18 A 51 21 £ &
schemes 60
32,719

Note: The performance related bonus payable to employees is

M BENEEZRBRARBLEATIREBENEEZ

determined based on the performance of the individual KEMEE -
employee.

Number of
employees
EE A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T £1,500,0007% JT 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ T £3,500,0007% 7T 1
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 8,500,001/ 7T £9,000,000/% 7T 1
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000 9,500,0017% 7T £10,000,0007% 7T 2

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
working for the Group during the year ended 31
March 2010, all the five individuals were directors
of the Company whose emoluments are included in
the disclosures in note 13 above.

REBZ_Z-—ZF=A=+—HILEE"
ERRAKEE s AN GEFMALZF
2HARALIRARBESR  REZHE
FIA £ XK 132 MEEE KL o

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

RAOTHEEBEERAR  2011F ]

75



/6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

15.  DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Weeteck Limited (“Weeteck” and formerly known as
Ngai Lik Mobile Electronics Limited) was engaged
in the manufacturing and trading of mobile
electronic products.

On 27 March 2009, it was resolved by the sole
director of Weeteck that Weeteck cannot by reason
of its liabilities continue its business. Accordingly,
Weeteck ceased its trading and production
business during the year ended 31 March 2010.
Special Resolutions were passed by the shareholder
of Weeteck at the extraordinary general meeting
held on 24 April 2009 to wind up Weeteck
voluntarily and appoint Mr. Kong Chi How, Johnson
of BDO Financial Services Limited as liquidator for
the purpose of the winding-up affairs. On the same
day, a meeting with the creditors of Weeteck was
also held subsequently whereby the appointed
liguidator was confirmed by the creditors of
Weeteck.

As mentioned in note 9, on the Effective Date, the
Group was split into two parts, the Retained Group
and the Scheme Subsidiaries. All Scheme
Subsidiaries were then immediately transferred by
the Company to the Administrators’ Vehicle. After
the Restructuring, the Group did not hold any
investment property as all subsidiaries included in
the property investment segment had been
transferred to the Administrators’ Vehicle.
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SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_Z——F=ZA=1+—HLLFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 15, CRIEREEK(E)
An analysis of the results and cash flows of the IAGZEEZABRABREEREERESRE
discontinued operations included in the consolidated RIIERIEKEEBR 2 EXERBSRE
statement of comprehensive income and the 2T
consolidated statement of cash flows was as
follows:
Loss for the year from discontinued operations BRIREEBZEERFR
Property Mobile
investment division 2010
MEKRE AREEBE —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAET FE T FHET
2010 —E_E
Turnover - 6,725 - 6,725
Cost of sales iR DN (10,134) - (10,134)
Gross loss = (3,409) — (3,409)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDERX (2,159) — (2,159)
Administrative expenses TEHHAX (35,512) — (35,512)
Other income HAtb g A 1,002 - 1,002
Net loss on investment properties X&YW ¥ 2 i8558 (24,010) — (24,010)
Loss on disposal of assets HESTHEARGTEEEL
classified as held for sale & & (52,000) — (52,000)
Loss before taxation Br 5 B & 18 (116,088) — (116,088)
Taxation charge I8 3 H (95,656) — (95,656)
Loss of discontinued operations BERIEREEK BB (211,744) — (211,744)
Gain on disposal of mobile division & /5B EKE W= — 21,009 21,009
(Loss) profit for the year from ERIEEEER
discontinued operations FE(EE) T (211,744) 21,009 (190,735)
2010
—E-FF
HK$'000
FET
Cash flows used in discontinued CRILEEETR
operations FERLSR=E
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBER S F58 (84,765)
Net cash used in investing activities REEHMERS F8 (1,155)
Net cash from financing activities BMEEBMEEREESFE 85,920

Net decrease in cash flows

HBenERrDFHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

15.

The

net liabilities of Weeteck at the date of

commencement of liquidation were as follows:

15, CHRILIEEEK(E)
EEMNNERENAS Y AEFENT

2010

—ET-FF

HK$’000

FHE T

Net liabilities derecognised BERREEFE 21,009
Gain on derecognition B8 7E 2R U 25 (21,009)

The liabilities of the Scheme Subsidiaries that were
engaged in property investment which had been
released or discharged were set out below. The
liabilities of the EMS Scheme Subsidiaries which
had also been released or discharged were set out

REMEREZAEMBRRZEER
FBEABHNT X - EMSEH &I E AR
ZEBRBHBFEBBEHNME -

in note 9.
2010
—E-FF
Notes HK$’'000
B & FET
Liabilities released or discharged: DB SEEAE:
Trade and other payables B 5K H MR RRK 58,769
Provision for taxation 0 IE 90,303
Total liabilities of Other Scheme BB EZ
Subsidiaries released or HEMrEIMB AR 2
discharged BERTE (i) 149,072
Net assets derecognised on debt B EMHZCEUH
restructuring WREEE (250,394)
Surplus of assets attributable to the E#E A5t 2| FE(L
Creditor Scheme (note 9) T &1 & = (B 7F9) (ii) (101,322)

Notes:

(i)

This amount represents the aggregate Scheme
Indebtedness, (actual or
of the Retained Group and the Scheme

indebtedness and liabilities
contingent)
Subsidiaries released and discharged at the Effective
Date.

The creditors of the Creditor Scheme are entitled to the
assets of the Group through Scheme Subsidiaries.
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SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_Z——F=ZA=1+—HLLFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 15. BRIELEXK(E)
Analysis of assets and liabilities of the Other EREEGEZEMFERNBARZE
Scheme Subsidiaries over which control was lost ERBEINBET:

was as follows:

2010
—E-EF
HK$'000
FET
Investment properties KEME 179,318
Land use rights T AR 46,951
Trade and other receivables and prepayments & 5 K H b FE U BR 72X & 78 1~ 7k 8 24,125
Net assets derecognised EHUEBRIFEE 250,394
There are no discontinued operations of the Group REBEZ—E——F=—A=+—HLEFERXN
incurred during the year ended 31 March 2011. REBWEE R IFCERETS -
(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. SR(EE)EF
For continuing and discontinued operations FESERDARLBEER
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per RARBBEABLCEREAREFE
share attributable to the owners of the Company is BIETIEEE -
based on the following data:
2011 2010
—F——% —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTH&ET FET
Loss for the year attributable to R EEREARR
owners of the Company for the BEEE 2 AR
purposes of basic and diluted PN
loss per share REEER (104,215) (129,398)

Number of ordinary shares

& EE
2011 2010
—FT——% —ZT-TF
Number of ordinary shares for the FiitEEFRERR
purposes of basic and diluted BEEBE
loss per share =ik #E 7,930,166,684  2,357,323,533
The computation of diluted loss per share does not FEEREEFEERTERIKARFZ
assume the exercise of the Company’s options ERECDETE REEZSEREZ
because the exercise price of those options was TEEER_E——FR_ZT—ZFAEAR
higher than the average market price of the Rl 2 THE -

Company’s shares for both 2011 and 2010.
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SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

16.  (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 16.

From continuing operation
The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)
earnings per share from continuing operation
attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

B (ER) BN ()

BEEEEY
ARBMEAEESBEEEB 2 BB
RAREEER B ET 5 B

=
>t

2011 2010
—FT——% —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Loss for the year attributable to FTEERERNEEZ
owners of the Company for the ARBEA ANFES
purposes of basic loss per share  KEEE1E (104,215) (129,398)
Less: Loss for the year from B ERIEREEBK
discontinued operations FANEE - 190,735
(Loss) profit for the purposes of HEBELEEB
basic and diluted (loss) earnings EREARAREE(BHE)
per share from continuing BH 2 (BE)RF
operation (104,215) 61,337

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed above for loss per share from continuing
and discontinued operations.

The computation of diluted (loss) earnings per
share does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s options because the exercise price of
those options was higher than the average market
price of the Company’s shares for both 2011 and
2010.

From discontinued operations

No loss per share information is disclosed for the
year ended 31 March 2011 as there are no
discontinued operations of the Group incurred.

Basic and diluted loss per share for the
discontinued operations for the year ended 31
March 2010 is HK8.1 cents per share, based on
the loss for the year from the discontinued
operations of HK$190,735,000 and the
denominators detailed above.
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17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_Z——F=ZA=1+—HLLFE

HK$'000
FHET
FAIR VALUE AFEE
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFMA—A 203,182
Effect of exchange rate changes on EEREHHITEWE 2
investment properties A 1,341

Additions NE 146
Decrease in fair value of investment properties 3% & ¥ % 2 2 & i 4 (25,351)
Derecognised on debt restructuring B 75 B AR EUH R (179,318)
At 31 March 2010 and 2011 RZZE—ZTFR

—E-——F=ZA=+—H -

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
at the date of derecognition on 11 January 2010
were revalued by the directors of the Group with
reference to valuation at 31 March 2009 by B.l.
Appraisals Limited, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers and recent market prices for
similar properties. The valuation was arrived at by
adopting the investment approach by taking into
account the current rent passing and the
reversionary income potential of the property.

The investment properties were situated outside
Hong Kong and represented interests in industrial
plants in the PRC, which were under medium-term
leases.

AREZRAMER-_T—BF—A+—
ABERREANZATEOMARE
RS EMBTARRTEEERT
RIEBEIEERANR-ETAES A
S+ -BZAERBLNE Y ETE
BER - EMEEDRAREEREE
BRAMZAEKTRYEZ RREAES
st -

NRBERAIMEBRZBZEYERLRF
Bz TXEmME2ER  DATHEERER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=—A=+—HIEFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRMNE

e N
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. NE -BERKRE
Medium-term Leasehold
leasehold improvements,
land and  Buildings office
buildings outside equipment,
in Hong Hong Motor  Plant and  furniture, and
Kong Kong vehicles machinery fixtures  Moulds Total
RE#EZ MAREH
THHE K5 HENERE
TR BEZ BER BAERE
#¥ ¥ RE e HRRKE Ba @it
HK$'000  HK$O000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
FAL Thr ThEx FAL Thr FHr  ThR
COST BAE
At 1 April 2009 RZZETNERA-H 21598 262,043 28510 612,700 97157 260,809 1,282,817
Additions RE - - 615 1,504 1232 4,083 7,434
Disposals/written off HE /s - - (7.338)  (262,487) (51,979) (218,238)  (540,042)
Derecognised on debt restructuring BB EABIUEER (21598)  (262,043)  (15165)  (350,313) (44780)  (45,342)  (739,241)
At 31 March 2010 WZZ-F4=A=1+-AH - - 6,622 1,404 1,630 1312 10,968
Additions RE - - - 109 186 3,330 3,575
Disposals/written off HE/ W - - (6,622) (831) (86) (33) (7572)
At 31 March 2011 R-E-—-%=ZfA=+-A - - - 682 1680 4,609 6,971
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ~ B3HiTE R ifi {E
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNERA-A 8,413 72,250 20,720 549,602 90,524 253446 994,955
Provided for the year FEEE 346 4,076 1,285 9,067 3,201 1,194 19,189
Impairment loss recognised BRARESE - 5,353 929 - 2,493 - 8,775
Eliminated on disposals/written off HE /s - - (7083 (253,508) (51,937) (217,788)  (530,316)
Eliminated on debt restructuring BEREARHE (8,759) (81679 (11211 (305,132 (42,953 (36,797)  (486,531)
At 31 March 2010 R-Z-ZFZA=+-8 - - 4,640 29 1,348 55 6,072
Provided for the year FEEE - - 352 60 74 402 888
Impairment loss recognised BRAREER - - - 540 245 3,738 4523
Eliminated on disposals/written off HE /B - - (4,992) " (15) (1) (5,015)
At 31 March 2011 R-ZE-——%#=ZfA=+-8 - - - 622 1,652 4,194 6,468
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 31 March 2011 R-ZE-—-%#=ZfA=+-8 - - - 60 28 415 503
At 31 March 2010 WZE-ZF=f=+—-H - - 1,082 1,375 282 1,257 4,896
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18.

Notes to

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment
other than buildings and leasehold improvements
are depreciated on a reducing balance basis at the
following rates per annum:

Motor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 5%-20%
Office equipment 10%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 10%-20%
Moulds 15%-25%

Buildings and leasehold improvements are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following

rates per annum, or the term of the leases,
whichever is shorter:

Buildings 2%
Leasehold improvements 10%

All buildings, which were outside Hong Kong, were
derecognised during the year ended 31 March
2010 on debt restructuring.

During the year, the directors conducted a review
of the Group’s manufacturing assets and
determined that a number of those assets were
impaired, due to scaling down of manufacturing
operation of EMS business. Accordingly, impairment
losses of HK$4,523,000 have been recognised in
respect of property, plant and equipment, that were
used in the EMS segment. The recoverable
amounts of the relevant assets have been
determined based on the management’s estimation
of amounts to be recovered through scrap sales.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the recoverable
amounts of the property, plant and equipment that
were used in EMS business were determined using
the value in use calculation. The discount rate in
measuring the amounts of value in use was 8% per
annum.

The carrying values of these property, plant and
equipment (net of impairment losses) as at 31
March 2011 amounts to approximately HK$503,000
(2010: HK$4,896,000).

the Consolidated Financial Statements

18.

SRR mRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_Z——F=ZA=1+—HLLFE

NE- BERRE(R)

riaixE BELRBEBEEEFEHEE
Y EFAERIN TIA R BB B E L T 5
FREFTE:

TE 20%
R 5 Ko 1 25 5%-20%
WRERAME 10%-20%
RIMREE 10%-20%
= 15%—-25%

BFREEMERRERTIFMNERY
HEFHURBESE)NERETE:

EF 2%
HEMERE 10%

HREBEMSR MABUREBNUAINZ
BEFERBE_Z-—ZTF=-H=1T—HL
FEIUEER -

RER BEFHAEBZ2AEEEEETT
R UHRESETZEEECDRE 1D
MREREMSEF 2 A EREME - &
I EMSOE Az  BMEAEZHEZ
BB &5 184,523,000 B R - HHEE
EZAURE &R EEEE Y ER S
Sz BB 2 AR E o

REBEE-_ZT—ZTF-_A=Z+—HLFE"
EMSEGFTAZME MEK&E 2T
EE&EIOEAFEREENE -FTE2FEH
BEZWTREAETFS -

RZE——F=ZA=+—H ZEWE-
MEFEXEZFEABEFGRRERE)A
#7503,000/8 7T (=& —F F : 4,896,000/
JT) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BREE
HK$’000
FAET
COST EJUHE
At 1 April 2009 RZFEZANFHEA—A 153,958
Derecognised on debt restructuring & 75 2 #8 B BUE #E 32 (153,958)
At 31 March 2010 and 2011 RZEB-—ZFR_T-——F=A=+—H —
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT  # &4 & i (&
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZANFHEA—A 153,958
Eliminated on debt restructuring 15 75 25 78 B 4 35 (153,958)
At 31 March 2010 and 2011 RZB-—ZTFR_T——F=A=t+—H —
CARRYING AMOUNTS MR E
At 31 March 2010 and 2011 RZEB-—ZFER_FT-——F=A=+—H —
The above intangible assets represented B EEERDBEER CAELRE -
development expenditure capitalised and had EHEEREBEBRZUGERER - %%
definite useful lives. Such intangible assets were BEEENEGEIN-FHANEN -
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of
3 years.
20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 200 R—EBENTzER
2011 2010
—FT——% —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#&ET FAT
Cost of investment, unlisted ?xﬁ)ﬁ?$ L™ 38 —
Share of post-acquisition profits o1k W B 18 s ) K
and other comprehensive income, EI@EEH&U\
net of dividends received HBx B U B AR - —
38 —
Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEBmRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE_Z——F=ZA=Z=1+—HLLFE

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 20. R—EBELTzES(E)

The Group had an interest in the following RZE—EFR-F——F=A=+—H0"

associate as at 31 March 2010 and 2011: REBPRUTHE AT HEEEZ
Place/country of Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ Class of value of issued capital Principal

Name of entity operation shares held held by the Group activities
AL ARE/FAFEBITRE

EREE BEME ER Fifsik 4 Bl HEZERL e

2011 2010

—E——F —T-TF

Victor Bond Limited BVI Ordinary 49% — Inactive
HEEBRAR EBEXES EiaE EmEE
The summarised financial information in respect of REEBE AT 2 HEERBESINNT

the Group’s associate is set out below:

HK$’000

FA&TT

Total assets BEBE 78

Total liabilities BEHEAE —

Net assets BEEFE 78
Group’s share of net assets of REBSE—HEBERTZ

an associate BEFE 38

Revenue g z= -

Profit for the year F 5 F —

Other comprehensive income Hip2EUKA —

Group’s share of profit of an associate REED(h—EBERE Z2FE & T
for the year —

Group’s share of reserve of an associate AEEDE—EBE QR ZFEHE
for the year —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. RE
2011 2010
—T——% —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FHET
Raw materials R 1,469 56,637
Work in progress PR Yo 266 11,120
Finished goods B BK i 7,451 27,419
9,186 95,176

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

2. BEREMBERRAREANSRE

PREPAYMENTS
2011 2010
—g——F —ZE-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Trade receivables =08 AT 8,834 37,024
Less: Impairment loss WOREEE (5,529) —
3,305 37,024
Amount due from Scheme FE U AT B BT B 2 B 5 IE
Subsidiaries (Note) (BF7E) 30,366 —
Other receivables and prepayments H ftb & I BR 32X & 78 1~ 70 18 663 8,018
Less: Impairment loss on amount 3 : JEUZ 5T 21K B A 7
due from Scheme Subsidiaries REZ REERE (7,041) —
27,293 45,042

Note: The amount represents the expenses incurred by the
Scheme Subsidiaries after the Effective Date which were
paid on behalf of the Scheme Subsidiaries during the
current year. Impairment loss on amount due from
Scheme Subsidiaries amounting to HK$7,041,000 (2010:
nil) has been recognised at the end of the reporting
period. The amount (net of impairment loss) is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The amount is
expected to be settled within 12 months from the end of
the reporting period.

Customers are generally granted credit terms of
letter of credit at sight or open accounts from 7
days to 30 days. Longer credit periods are granted
to several customers which have long business
relationship with the Group and strong financial

position.
86 Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22,
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The following is an analysis of trade receivables by
age (net of impairment losses), presented based on
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

GEBmRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE_Z——F=ZA=Z=1+—HLLFE

B R A B RR KB TRE(R)

RBEHRRERBEEZEANZ2INZES
FEUR R (FNERIRE R B B DT a0 T

2011 2010

—T——% —E-ZF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FH&T

Current-30 days BNEf-30H 2,444 36,455
31-60 days 31-60H 4 565
61-90 days 61-90H 856 3
Over 90 days 90 M 1 1
3,305 37,024

In determining the recoverability of trade
receivables, the Group considers any change in the
credit quality of the trade receivable from the date
credit was initially granted up to the end of the
reporting period. The concentration of credit risk is
limited due to the customer base being large and
unrelated. Accordingly, the directors believe that
there is no credit provision required as at the end
of the reporting period.

RETEZRWERZAREER - K
SEEEEZREEIARNEENRMLE
FHEERERERF LM EES
ERABE -EERRZETHEER
RAREFEMBEARIL EEIE - Lt
EEHENREHERBBAELEE
i e

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts REREZEEY
2011 2010
—E——% —FE-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F&TT
Balance at the beginning of F U4
the year - 28,114
Impairment losses recognised on 3L & 5 & Ik BR SRE R
trade receivables VRN 5,530 7,579
Amounts written off as uncollective #fi$ &M xUk 0 2 £ 58 1) —
Eliminated on debt restructuring B 155 5 70 BF 3 3 - (35,693)
Balance at the end of the year FIREE 5,529 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22. BESRHEMEWRARAMGTE(E)
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not CHANMEERBE ESEURRZRR
impaired
2011 2010
—E——%F —ET-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FHBT
1-60 days 1-60H 4 10,704
61-90 days 61-90H 856 3
Over 90 days 90 M 1 1
Total BEt 861 10,708
Trade receivables denominated in currencies other NEBEBEERE 2D EBUIINEBE
than functional currencies of the relevant group BZzESREWERREIWLT:
entities are set out below:
2011 2010
—T——% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEIT FET
RMB AR - 586
usb E=2 857 —
23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES 23. BEEHBRTER RTLEEKES

AND CASH

Bank balances comprise short-term bank deposits
with maturity of three months or less. The short-
term bank deposits carry interest at market rates of
0.35% (2010: 0.36%) per annum.

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group. Deposits amounting to HK$686,000 (2010:
HK$nil) have been pledged to secure undrawn
facilities and are therefore classified as current
assets.

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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24.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEBmRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE_Z——F=ZA=Z=1+—HLLFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 24, BEREMERSRRKETER
ACCRUALS
2011 2010
—B——%5 —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#EIT FHE T
Trade payables B S ET RN 3,165 43,723
Other payables HAbEATER K
— Amount due to Scheme — ERETEIM B AR
Subsidiaries (Note(i) FRIE (KT FEG) 21,650 —
— Others — Hfty 18,708 45,850
Accruals EEtER
— Accrued royalty expenses — B EFEERAX
(Note (i) (B 5 Gii)) 114,688 85,042
158,211 174,615
Notes: B &

(i) The amount represents the rental expenses payable, (i)
machinery lease payables, and subcontracting fees
payables to Scheme Subsidiaries. The amount is interest-
free and repayable on demand.

(i) the amount represents the royalty expenses accrued (i)
based on the management’s best estimation of the
Group’s potential liability in relation to intellectual
properties used for the production of electronic products.

I EEENFEMBEATNZENAESMAY -
N EEEERENIHER - LEERR
SRBRBEREER -

HEHEERBYREANEEEFEMZI A
ERAECASEEEREMEZ REM
MaHEHzEMNEERMAS -

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables RBEHRBREZREAHZEIINZES
presented based on the invoice date at the end of JERBRRBERER DT

the reporting period:

2011 2010

—E——%f —E—ZF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FH&xT

Current-30 days BNER-30H 1,246 28,848
31-60 days 31-60H 206 811
61-90 days 61-90H 1,695 8,664
Over 90 days 90B M E 18 5,400
3,165 43,723
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=—A=+—HIEFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)

Trade payables denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

24.

BESREGENRARETEAR(E)

NEMSEER 2R E B AINIE G
BZESRMNEREINMT

2011 2010
—F——% —E-FF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FETT FAETT

RMB AREE 262 6,644
UsD e 1,804 —
2,066 6,644

25. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES/AN
ASSOCIATE

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The amounts represented:

(i) amount due to a related party of
approximately HK$1,819,000, which is a
company wholly owned by a director of the
subsidiaries; and

(i)  amount due to a related party of
approximately HK$1,020,000, which is a
company with a common director of the
Company that owns 26.8% effective interest
of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

GEUBmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE_Z——F=ZA=Z=1+—HLLFE

26. WMERORE

Present value of

Minimum lease

minimum lease

payments payments
EfREEE EfRRE£ZHE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —_T-TF Z8——F —_T-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FiE T
The maturity of the BERNAE
obligations under finance e v B BR
leases is as follows: wm
Within one year —FK 32 32 32 32
More than one year, but not —%&F I F1{B
exceeding two years THB B & 3 35 3 35
35 67 35 67
Less: Future finance charges i : K &
& B A - — - —
Present value of lease A REZ
obligations R1E 35 67 35 67
Less: Amounts due within BoERBAR
one year shown under ETER—F
current liabilities WNIEE 2 FIA (32) (32)
Amounts due after one year BN —EREER
ZHRIA 3 35

The average lease term is 4 years. Interest rates
underlying all obligations under finance leases are
fixed at respective contract dates at Hong Kong
Inter-bank Offered Rate plus 0.8% per annum and
fixed interest rate of 3% per annum.

THRAFHANLE - IERARNR
BHEMARORETHAREE BE
8 48 17 ) 2 47 8 00 48 I R0.8% R B 5 4
R 3% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

27. PROVISION

The amount represents warranty provision made
during the year based on the management’s best
estimate of the Group’s potential liability in relation
to warranty provided to customers for electronic
products. The amount of provision is estimated
based on prior experience and industry averages
for defective products.

217.

B
ERRERFARBEEESASEH
EFEMRAEPIRHAEARELEZA
BZHEBTIRHEIARERRB - BERX
HIRBEEBEERMEEANREFHEE
tEH ST ©

HK$000
T T
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZANFHMA—A 15,175
Additions NE 2,669
At 31 March 2010 and 2011 i EFER_E——F=A=+—H 17,844
28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. BEEHKIE
The following are the major deferred taxation WTRERRZIEECHBRBE(BE)
liabilities (assets) recognised and movements REES:
thereon:
Accelerated tax  Revaluation Tax
depreciation of properties losses  Others Total
mi& B
RERE WEERR  BH Hit @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TEL TEr ThAx ThEx Tix
At 1 April 2009 RZZZNEMA-H 6,177 15,425  (1749) 7108 26956
Charge (credit) to profit or loss FEREBRENBRGA)
for the year 554 - (554) - -
Credit to profit or loss for the year SFAFAZERE
— discontinued operations - BRI EER - (15,425) - - (15425)
Release upon debt restructuring EREREED
— continuing operation (note 9) SEREEY
(M39) 6,177) - 179 (7103  (11,531)
At 31 March 2010 R-E-ZF=A=1+-H 554 - (654) - -
(Credit) charge to profit or loss ERERREGA) MR
for the year (474) - 474 - -
At 31 March 2011 RZE-——%=A=+-H 80 - (80) - -
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29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEUBmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE_Z——F=ZA=Z=1+—HLLFE

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 28. EEMRE(E)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had N EHERF AEEBERBHE
unused tax losses of HK$169,216,000 (2010: 15 /5 18169,216,000/% T (= & — T 4
HK$101,375,000) available for offset against future 101,375,000 7T) » AT 4 4 $ 5k 26 3% F) &
profits and those can be carried forward indefinitely. mEH G E BB EEED R RER
Deferred taxation assets have been recognised in B B 18482000 (= E — T 4

respect of such tax losses of HK$482,000 (2010:
HK$3,356,000). No deferred taxation assets have
been recognised in relation to the remaining

3,356,000/ JT) T T LATER - IR B %%
A8 2 A] FE AT - ML 8 168,734,000

HK$168,734,000 (2010: HK$98,019,000) due to the A TL(= % — % 4 : 98,019,000/ TL) 2 £
unpredictability of future profit streams. All BEBAME  TREIECHAEE -
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward FIARIERZBEE B RRBER -
indefinitely.
SHARE CAPITAL 29. BA&
Number of
shares Amount
i 8 B ko]
HK$'000
THET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each &R EE0.018 T 2 & B
7

Authorised: E
As at 1 April 2009 R-ZETAFHA—H 1,200,000,000 120,000
Increase # 10,800,000,000 —

As at 31 March 2010 and 2011 RNZE—ZEFRN_T——F=A=+—H 12,000,000,000 120,000

Issued and fully paid: EETREE:

As at 1 April 2009 R-ZETAFHA—H 793,016,684 79,302
Capital reduction (note a) P 2 Bl (P 3 a) - (71,372)
Issue of shares (note b) BT (M 5EDb) 7,137,150,000 71,372

As at 31 March 2010 and 2011 RIE—EFN_T——F=A=+—H 7,930,166,684 79,302

Notes: B 5 -

(@) A capital reduction through the cancellation of HK$0.09 (@) HREBARRARERMN S EKRE HKA010
out of HK$0.10 of the paid-up capital on each existing 7 70 2 B 19 5E $50.097% T ik 1T 2 BR AN IR
share of the Company had been completed during the EREBE_ZT-—ZF=A=+—-HIFEA
year ended 31 March 2010. FERK °

(b) Subscription of 7,137,150,000 new shares of the Company (b) ERZERAFERBRARRABESR
of par value of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of #90.0127% 7t + R #§7,137,150,0004% & % @ &
approximately HK$0.012 per share by the then holding 0OlB Tz ARAHilkh BHeaKREA
company, Success Pioneer Limited, resulting in cash 83,500,000/ - MZABEHEERBEE
consideration of HK$83.5 million had been completed F-BE=-A=FT-RALFERATK-
during the year ended 31 March 2010.

The new shares rank pari passu with the existing HREL S EYEEBEERNEZARZRES -

shares in all respect.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011

=
30.

TE——F=fF=+—HItEE

SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on
23 August 2002 by the Company (the “Scheme”),
the Company may grant options to, inter alia,
directors and employees of the Company or its
subsidiaries, for the purpose of providing incentives,
to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to
a maximum of 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time and the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any one employee shall not be more
than 30% of the maximum number of shares in
respect of options may be granted under the
Scheme. Options granted are exercisable at any
time during the option period, a period to be
notified by the Board to each grantee at the time
of making an offer which shall not expire later than
10 years from the offer date. The subscription price
of the option shares shall not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (i) the
average closing price on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant; or (i) the nominal value of a share.
Options granted must be taken up within 28 days
of the date of grant and a nominal consideration of
HK$1 is payable on each grant of option.

Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their
exercise date are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.

Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

RONIEEBERRA

20114 3}

30.

ERE
BHEARFIR-_BEZE-_ENA_+=8MR
Ry BB (58 ARRAM
(KB AQRREMNBRARZEEZR
EERTEREELSNE  BHEFESH
REARTRMD  UEZAEAQFTEE
BT AZ10% AR —HE B TR E
BRIZBEBREMSIERZBRHBEREZRE
RBBRIETE TR ERER SR RGD
BeEEZ30% ° AT Z B E R B
Bt HE A R P9 A (AT B R P UATT AE - A R P
FMHEFeNREZNBBNSARA
HETEBBEHRHRET+F - 1TFEE
BRERZBORBETELRUTZE
BE(VBRORELBSEBIfIzKm
E:iROHREERIBHINARRZSH
Rz FHRME: (i) HHEE -
Fr s 2 B AR 4 72 A 3% 1 B H A 3128 H
NEW TEREMBERESREESHE
BREIMIBETRENRE-

RITEEHAMARAEH I BRES R
fel R 7 {65 8 ASU#E 5 A 11 PO M BR R 8% o



30.

SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

There are no outstanding share options which were
granted under the Scheme as at 31 March 2011.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30.

Outstanding share options which were granted
under the Scheme as at 31 March 2010 are as

GEUBmRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_Z——F=fA=+—HLFE
IR (&)
RZEBE-——F=ZA=+—H BERE
EIEREE®RRITE 2 BARRE -

RZZE-—ZTF=A=+—H RETE2
RHOERARITEZEBREAT:

follows:
Exercise  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
price at 1 April during  at 31 March
Participants Date of grant Exercise period per share 2009  the year 2010
RZZErE R-F-BF
5k mA-H £k =ZHA=t+-H
g2z REAH 1TIE 8 R THE i K 17 € BXH i K 17 €
HK$
B
Ex-directors
HES
Ms. Ting Lai Wah 22 May 2007 11 June 2007 to 0.690 7,000,000  (7,000,000) -
30 June 2009
TBELT “EE+FRAZ+t-HE ZEZLERAT-HE
“EENAFAASTA
Mr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong 22 May 2007 11 June 2007 to 0.690 4,000,000  (4,000,000) -
30 June 2009
BEXKE “ERHERACTZA ZEELEAAT-BE
ZEENERACTAH
Mr. Lam Shing Ngai 22 May 2007 11 June 2007 to 0.690 700,000 (700,000 -
30 June 2009
WEREE “ETLERA-T-A —ETLEAAT-BE
ZZTAERAZTH
Others
Hih
Employees 22 May 2007 11 June 2007 to 0.690 2,650,000  (2,650,000) -
30 June 2009
EE “ZT+FRAZTZH ZEZtEAAT-HE

“RIAERAZTA

Options granted under the Scheme are exercisable
at any time during the option period with no vesting

conditions.

14,350,000 (14,350,000) -

R IE FT &) P IX 2 B B Al 10 B A v B
R AL IR 1T - B I8 55 88 ok 1 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 3. BRKBFIEE
The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all TEBEEFMBERBEAZAERREER
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of VRERFE cFEZEETIBHEXFTA
the scheme are held separately from those of the THeESRA HAKBEZEESH
Group in funds under the control of trustee. BRI o
In addition, the Group’s contribution to a local e A - A& B A B E T B R KR
municipal government retirement scheme in the El2HARDREERIERSY  MHPEE
PRC are expensed as fall due while the local HMHHERNFERBEREMBRAERRKR
municipal government in the PRC undertakes to FEZEEBRKES ZRERA -
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retirees of the qualified staff in
the PRC.
The retirement benefit cost charged to the profit or RiFEr2ERAREZEZRANKRZ
loss in the consolidated statement of BARBHNAAERNEEZTEREUE
comprehensive income represents contributions FELE R 2K e
payable to the schemes by the Group at the rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.
32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 32. RMERHNAE
As lessee EREABEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RMEPLERT  NEBREFVER
commitments for future minimum lease payments HmEERBERTIEBER 2D A
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect HEEHANEN AR RKERASOT :
of building premises and other assets falling due:
2011 2010
—B——5F _ZT-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within one year —FA 496 121
In the second to fifth year inclusive £ X FAF(BHEEERE) - 46
496 167

Operating lease payments represent rental payable
by the Group for certain building premises and
machineries. Leases are negotiated for an average
term of one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEMBERRHMTE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F-A=+-BLFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. FREALRS
(@ During the year, the Group entered into the @ AEERFANEEHEATERE
following significant transactions with related XBBEBEREETUTEARS:

parties in the ordinary course of business:

2011 2010
~B—-—-F —T-FTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &F TER FET
Sub-contracting income from  REEX(ERK)EXARAF
Wah Mei (Lui’s) Industrial (T#EZDzMIBA
Limited (“Wah Mei") (i) - 99
Sales to Wah Mei HETEE () - 74
Hotel expenses and other XN FERBESBEERKEE
expenses paid to Qingyuan ZBERTREMAS
Regent International Hotel (ii) - 177

Notes: B 3% -

(i) Wah Mei is a company controlled by the father-in- (i) EEXD-—BHARARMESHERE
law and mother-in-law of Mr. Lam Shing Ngai, the EEBRZZT—ZF_ATN\BEHMTZ
ex-director (resigned on 18 February 2010) of the ERXRRERGESFHZ AR -

Company.

(ii) Qingyuan Regent International Hotel is indirectly (ii) BRBRBEAKEEBMREELT (R
controlled by a discretionary trust for Dr. Lam Man ARAERKAMNES) 22 EaHE
Chan (the ex-Chairman and ex-director of the El e TR Z T RMEREENUR
Company). Ms. Ting Lai Ling and Mr. Lam Shing MELTRTZETZEMREKNE RS
Ngai and other family members of Dr. Lam and BEFMZZHA c ARAINERESE (5
Ms. Ting are the beneficiary objects of the BB EEL  TERRZL - K
discretionary trust. Four ex-directors of the BEERBEXTE)RZBEZE
Company, namely, Dr. Lam Man Chan, Ms. Ting E

Lai Ling, Mr. Lam Shing Ngai and Mr. Yeung
Cheuk Kwong are directors of the hotel.
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SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. BEREALXRZ(E)
(b)  Compensation of key management personnel b)) TEEBABZHEH
The remuneration of members of key FEBzFEBEEEKE(KQARE
management of the Group (other than the ERNzZBEIOT
directors of the Company) are as follows:
2011 2010
—F——% —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FHET
Basic salaries and allowance EXH e MER 31,546 2,946
Contributions to retirement benefit & K 4@ | 51 &)t 5%
scheme 48 4
31,594 2,950

The remuneration of the directors of the
Company is in note 13.

The remuneration of members of key
management personnel (other than the
directors of the Company) for the year ended
31 March 2011 represented remuneration to
individuals who were directors of the
Company before the Restructuring. The
remuneration of these individuals for the year
ended 31 March 2010 are included in
directors’ remuneration disclosed in noted 13
and are not included in the amounts
presented above.

(©) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the
Group has disposed of two equipment to a
related party for a consideration of
HK$831,000 with carrying amount of
HK$824,000, resulting in a gain on disposal
on the two equipment amounting to HK$7,000
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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34.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Statement of financial position of the Company at

GEBmRMNE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE_Z——F=ZA=Z=1+—HLLFE

34, AATRHBMRRBER2EHR

RBERERE - AR ZH BN K

the end of the reporting period is summarised as =T
follows:
2011 2010
—E——%f —ET—FF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FAET
Non-current asset ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z®E 1 —
Current assets MEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE U B BB X B FR 1B - 10
Prepayment and deposits FERRIE NS - 64
Tax recoverable Al Uk [B] 7 18 45 45
Bank balances and cash WITEGT AR 40 9,302
85 9,421
Current liabilities mEAERE
Other payables H b FE AT BR X 2,013 5,235
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT B B A R 3R I8 2,046 —
Tax payable & 718 45 45
4104 5,280
Net current (liabilities) assets MEEE(BE)FE (4,019) 4,141
Total assets less current liabilities #E&BERM RS AGE (4,018) 4,141
Capital and reserves 1% 7K % 7% 15
Share capital [N 79,302 79,302
Reserves (note 35) it 14 (P4 7535) (83,320) (75,161)
Total (deficits) equity = (E5AN) 4858 (4,018) 4,141
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEMBEBRRHMTE

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

35. RESERVES 35. ffE
Share
Share Other options  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
1] B
I 3 i (B 1] -1 RitB#E h)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEL FAT TAR TAR
(note)
(Mt3t)
THE COMPANY 345
At 1 April 2009 RZZZAFMA-H 82,844 - 1,583 (189,799)  (105372)
Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ AEEEE R
for the year PEARTLE - - - (53289)  (53,289)
Capital reduction BRI - 71,372 - - 71,372
Issue of shares B 0] 12,128 - - - 12,128
At 31 March 2010 RZZ-%%
ZA=t-H 94,972 71,372 1,583 (243,088) (75,161)
Loss and total comprehensive expense  RNEE BB R
for the year rERXEE - - - (8,159) (8,159)
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F
ZA=1-8 94,972 71372 1583 (51247)  (83,320)
Note: The other reserve represents the credit arising from the Mist: HtEEERAERAMES ZERSE - RA
capital reduction where the par value of each existing BB S B8 S IR IVA IR G 2 82 AR $#50.09
share will be reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by the B B ERRAE RN EEHRI0E THI
cancellation of HK$0.09 of the paid-up capital on each HE0.01B T ©

existing share.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wE R Wk KR

For the year ended 31 March 2011
BE-T——F-A=+-BLFE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  36. FEWEBARZH1E

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at RZE——FR=ZF—ZEF=A=+—H0"
31 March 2011 and 2010 are as follows: KRB EFEMBRARFBNOT:

Nominal value of Percentage of nominal value

Place of issued ordinary  of issued share capital/
incorporation/ Place of share/registered registered capital held by the Principal
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital Company activities
R/ ERTLEAR/# FATBRFCRTRE/HA
WEASER b EEE REAEE BXEEZER TEER
2011 2010
—¥--% C-T-%%
Ample Power Limited Samoa Hong Kong US$1,000 100* — Inactive
SHARRA EED EE 1,000% 7T HEex
Din Wai Digital Limited Samoa Hong Kong US$100 100* 100" Trading of
electronic
products
ERUEERAT EED B 100% T EESTER
Din Wai Services (Macao Commercial Macao Macao MOP1,000,000 100* 100" Inactive
Offshore) Limited
ERBBOEFBEEBZRHERAT &M S 1,000,000 T EE-$S
Elite Novel Limited BVI BVI US$100 100* 100" Investment holding
EEBERAR RERAHS ERRAES T REER
Firmwill Investments Limited BVI BVI US$1 100 — Investment holding
BRRAFBAT RERAHS EERAES I REEK
Fully World Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100* — Inactive
LEERAA o Y BT T
Grand More Enterprises Limited Samoa Hong Kong US$100 100* 100" Trading of
electronic
products
EELERRAA EED B 100% T EESTER
Ngai Lik Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100* 100" Trading of
electronic
products
BNGCEBRAA 'R 3 3,000,000 7 EEETER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SRR mRME

For the year ended 31 March 2011
HE-_T——F=A=+—HLFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. TEMBAR (&)

(Continued)
Nominal value of Percentage of nominal value
Place of issued ordinary of issued share capital/
incorporation/ Place of share/registered registered capital held by the Principal
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital Company activities
R/ BEMLER /& FLBACRIRE/HR
HEASERH AR GEnY R+ EE EXEEZERL TEEH
2011 2010
—%--5 -2-Z

Ngai Lik Industrial Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100* 100" Inactive

RNEEERAT &R £ 10,0005 7T 1000 EEEE

Ngai Lik International Trading Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100* — Trading of

electronic
products

RNERESERAT BE 3 18T EESTEM

Techno Sea Limited BVI BVI US$1 100* — Investment holding

HEERAA ERRLES EBALES E RERR

Top Novel Limited BVI BVI Us$100 100 100 Investment holding

BEARRA EBRTES EREAHES 100% 7T REAR

Yigin Investments Limited BVI BVI US$1 100 — Investment holding

RYRERA ERRLES EBALES E RERR

ENGERMEERRAA PRC PRC Nil 100+ — Inactive

(note a)

BENEERREEFRAA(HTa) HE HE z R

* Interest held by the Company through subsidiaries. * AARBBWNBRAR A ZE ©

Notes: B & -

(@) The subsidiary is set up as wholly-owned foreign (@) BEWBAR TIRPBERK LW FMAIIES
investment enterprise registered in the PRC. BIRERE -

(b) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities (b) BMENBARNEAER-_ZE——F=A=+—
subsisting at 31 March 2011 or at any time during the HERAFEEABBOABTRZEBES -
year.

©) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company (©) ERBINARRZHWBEBRR  EERAZRE
which, in the opinion of the Board, principally affected the RAIETEXERNEB EBEIEE - EFQ
results or assets of the Group. To give details of all other RREAIMEEMHNBRAR 2FBEIRER
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result BIEITEK °

in particulars of excessive length.
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Financial Summary
B 8=

Year ended 31 March
BE=HA=+—-BLEE
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——F —T-ZF ZZTTHhEF ZTENF ZZTTLtF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET FAT TAET TAET

RESULTS £
Turnover BEE 675,518 856,141 1,851,078 3,086,972 3,654,926
(Loss) profit before taxation B % AT (E518) % 7 (104,139) (31,096)  (932,221)  (157,414) 35,703
Taxation (charge) credit BEGEH) KR (76) (98,302) 15,893 20,863 (22,621)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(BR)EF (104,215) (129,398)  (916,328)  (136,551) 13,082
Attributable to: IATALTEAS:
Owners of the Company A/NSE PPN (104,215) (129,398)  (916,328)  (136,551) 13,082
Non-controlling interests FEiEE - - - - -

(104,215) (129,398)  (916,328)  (136,551) 13,082

As at 31 March

R=ZA=+—H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
“E——% —T-TF —TTHEF —EE\F —TTLEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT FAT FHET FHET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE

Total assets BEBTE 46,608 164,306 1,071,088 2,219,737 2,328,924
Total liabilities BERE (179,088) (192,571) (1,052,435) (1,281,756) (1,248,045)

(132,480) (08,265) 18,653 937,981 1,080,879

(Deficits) equity attributable to AN B #EH A FE(L

owners of the Company (B4t fEw (132,480) (28,265) 17,633 933,961 1,076,859
Non-controlling interests FEERER - - 1,020 4,020 4,020

(132,480) (28,265) 18,663 937,981 1,080,879
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